
Simon W. Baker   B.Ed  MBA  MISPAL
Chief Executive

RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 6 June 2018

Time: 10.00 am

Venue: The Council Chamber - Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek

29 May 2018

PART 1
1. Apologies for absence, if any 

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any 

3. Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 6)

4. Urgent items of Business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman) 

5. Declaration of Interests: 
i. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests;
ii. Other Interests.

6. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any 

7. 4th Quarter 2017/18 Performance, Procurement & Financial Review (Pages 7 - 54)

8. Performance Framework 2018/19 (Incorporating the Annual Report 2017/18 and 
revised Corporate Plan) (Pages 55 - 148)

9. Council Tax Recovery Process - Presentation (Pages 149 - 166)

10. Work Programme (Pages 167 - 168)
Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme:-

i. Chairman’s items;
ii. Members’ items;
iii. Forward Plan.

11. Exclusion of the Press and Public 
The Chair to move:-

“That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 

Public Document Pack



public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in 
Section 10 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.”

12. Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 169 - 170)
(Paragraph 3 – Financial or business affairs of any particular person)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

13. Alliance Environmental Services Update (Pages 171 - 186)
(Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) )

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Membership of Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel
Councillor N Hawkins (Chair) Councillor C Pearce (Vice-Chair)
Councillor R Alcock Councillor A Banks
Councillor J Bull Councillor J Davies
Councillor E Fallows Councillor M Gledhill
Councillor D Grocott Councillor K Harrison
Councillor A Hart Councillor B A Hughes
Councillor K J Jackson Councillor B Johnson
Councillor L D Lea Councillor M M Lovatt
Councillor L A Malyon Councillor D Shaw
Councillor P Wilkinson



1

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
MEETING

Minutes

WEDNESDAY, 18 APRIL 2018
PRESENT: Councillor N Hawkins (Chair) 

Councillors E Fallows, M Gledhill, K Harrison, A Hart, K J Jackson, 
L A Malyon, C Pearce, D Shaw and P Wilkinson

APOLOGIES: Councillors A Banks, J Davies, B A Hughes, B Johnson and 
A Wilkinson

51 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY

Councillor L. Malyon attended as substitute for Councillor A. Wilkinson.

52 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

DECIDED – That the Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 7 February 2018 
be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

53 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 
PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN)

Councillor Malyon raised the matter of the rural bus service, which was currently 
operating once a day, dropping off in Leek at 9.30am and departing at 2.30pm. This 
was proving to be too short a day for most people, resulting in very few passengers 
using the service. Members also pointed out that most users has bus passes (either 
Old Age Pensioners or students) resulting in very little revenue for the company 
providing the service (Aimee’s). 

The request was made for SMDC to be involved in getting the service to give a 
longer day in Leek and thus make it a more usable service. Users had indicated to 
members that they would be prepared to pay, possibly through the use of a ‘club 
card’, to make it more viable for Aimee’s.

Councillor Forrester agreed to discuss the matter with the Leader, with the 
assistance of Andrew Stokes.

 

54 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS:

There were no declarations of interest.

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 18 April 2018

2

55 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY

There were no questions.

56 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY POLICY

Mark Forrester – Democratic & Community Services Manager – proposed the 
revised policy to members. In 2015 both Strategic Alliance Councils adopted a new 
Equality and Diversity Policy and approved Corporate Equality Objectives (which 
were updated in 2017). 

It was proposed to retain the Equality objectives for 2018/19 with a progress report 
to be published at the end of the year.

As a result of monitoring legal cases which had considered the duties of public 
authorities under the Equality Act 2010, it was recommended that the Council revise 
its policy to address the findings in such cases. Such revisions would result in a 
better-focused and simplified policy.

A recent requirement to publish the ‘Gender Pay Gap’ was queried by members. It 
was clarified that HPBC had more than the 250 employee reporting criteria but 
SMDC did not. However, the calculation had been done for both anyway, with a 
negative gap in each case (female employees paid more than male employees). The 
HPBC gap was 4.8%, SMDC 6.0%. This was seen as something of an artificial 
comparison, with large variances in each quartile. The Chair requested a breakdown 
of the 4 quartile figures, which was agreed to be provided to a later meeting.

57 WORK PROGRAMME

Andrew Stokes (AS) – Executive Director – advised that, with phase 2 of the Alliance 
Environmental Services (AES) contract being imminent, it would be beneficial to the 
Panel to add an item to the Work Programme for the next meeting for an update, 
with a representative of AES being invited to attend.

As part of the AES process, a major proposed change was in vehicle procurement. 
Full Council approval was required for this. Specifications would be considered by 
the Service Delivery O&S Panel and finances by this Panel.

Councillor Jackson referred to the imminent ending of the Leisure Centres contract, 
asking whether the Panel could be involved in the consideration of the specifications 
for the new contract. AS confirmed that fundamental changes were inevitable due to 
the following:-

 Changes to the government’s Sport Delivery Programme;
 Financial challenges – the current contract was costing £500,000 p.a.;
 Main components at each of the 3 Leisure Centres were nearing the end of 

their lives, with major cost implications;
 The leisure market had changes significantly since the contract was awarded.

As a result of the above, the Council’s Leisure Strategy had been considered by the 
Service Delivery O&S Panel and the Council had commissioned a 3rd party to look at 
how the service was provided. Page 4



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 18 April 2018

3

The Chair suggested members visit all 3 centres to see for themselves. It was 
suggested that the visits be ‘un-announced’ to avoid artificial preparation by the 
centres.

58 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED – That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government 
Act, 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the 
proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential information as 
defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt 
information as defined in Section 100 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the 
Paragraphs indicated.

59 FACILITIES MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Members considered a report on new arrangements for the Council’s facilities 
management services.

The meeting closed at 11.05 am

_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel

6th June 2018

Appendices Attached
 Appendix A (2017/18 – Fourth Quarter (Provisional Outturn) Financial 

Report)
 Appendix B (2017/18 – Fourth Quarter Procurement Report) 
 Appendix C (2017/18 – Fourth Quarter Performance Report)

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall 
performance and financial position for the period ended 31st March 2018 
(“Fourth Quarter 2017/18”)

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Panel note: 

 The Fourth Quarter 2017/18 financial, procurement and performance 
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this 
covering report.

 The proposed allocation of the surplus on the General Fund Revenue 
Account to reserves as explained in Appendix A (paragraph 2.9)

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report essentially summarises the Council’s financial, procurement and 
performance position after considering service activity up to the end of the 
Fourth Quarter (i.e. 3st March 2018). 

TITLE: Fourth Quarter Financial, Procurement and 
Performance Review 2017/18

PORTFOLIO HOLDER Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Leader

CONTACT OFFICERS: Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement
Vanessa Higgins - Performance 

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



3.2 Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B 
(Procurement) and Appendix C (Performance). 

3.3 The position can be summarised as follows:

Subject Headline Reference
Finance The headlines for the Fourth Quarter are:

Performance against Budget
 At the Quarter Four stage the General Fund provisional outturn 

for 2017/18 is an underspend of £1,497,076

Efficiency Programme
 The overall efficiency target of £661,000 for 2017/18 has been 

achieved 

Capital Programme
 The revised Capital Programme budget for 2017/18 was set at 

£1.71m  
 The provisional outturn is £1.55m which represents an 

underspend of £0.16m relating primarily to re-profiling of the 
Asset Management Plan.

Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 31st March 2018 totalled £5.6 million. 
 The Ascent loan and debenture currently stands at £19 million.
 Council borrowing at 31st March 2018 totalled £12.9 million (£12 

million of which relates to the Ascent loan)
 The Council’s net interest receipts budget has achieved a surplus 

of £35,713.

Revenue Collection
 98.6% of Council Tax was collected by 31 March 2018 (98% 

target exceeded), compared to 98.7% for the same period last 
year.

 98.5% of Business Rates was collected by 31 March 2018 (98.1% 
target exceeded) compared with 98.8% for the same period last 
year.

 At the end of the year the value of sundry debt that was over 60 
days old was £110,423 which compares with £127,221 at 31 
March 2017 (5% reduction target exceeded).

Appendix A

Procurement The headlines for the Fourth Quarter are:

 30 procurement activities were completed 
 At the 31 March 2018, 71% of procurement activity undertaken 

was on the forward plan and the Council paid 96% of its invoices 
within 30 days during the year

Appendix B 

Performance The headlines for the Fourth Quarter are:

 Targets for 76% of the key performance indicators were met
 Of the 24 Priority Actions within the Corporate Plan, 2 are still to 

Appendix C

Page 8



Subject Headline Reference
commence, 4 are complete, 1 is closed, 2 are rated amber, the 
remainder being classified as ‘Green’; and

 The Council received 43 complaints, 55 comments and 22 
compliments in the Fourth Quarter. 

 Repeat complaints and response times both on track
 

4.      How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 
effective management of performance and financial resources, which is the 
subject of this report.

5.      Options and Analysis

5.1 Detailed Analysis is contained within the main body of the Report.

6.   Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2 Workforce
None.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality 
and Diversity policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report.

6.5 Legal
None.

16.6 Sustainability
None.

6.7 External Consultation
None.

6.8          Risk  Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are 
identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A.

6.4

Page 9



ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Various background working papers Moorlands House Claire Hazeldene
01538 395400 Ext. 4191

Vanessa Higgins 
01538 395400 Ext. 4195

Page 10



 

APPENDIX A

2017/18

Fourth Quarter 
(Provisional Outturn)

 Financial 
Review

 

Page 11



1 Background and Introduction

1.1 In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and 
recommended good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to 
members. This is the final report for 2017/18.

1.2 The report summarises overall financial performance for 2017/18 with 
particular emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. 
Specific considerations are as follows:

 General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers 
budgetary performance on the General Account by looking at 
variations in income and expenditure and the funding received by the 
Council. 

 Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 3) – 
considers progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation 
savings forecast for 2017/18. 

 Capital Programme (Section 4) – provides an update to Members 
on progress against the Council’s capital plan 

 Treasury Management (Section 5) – sets out the key statistics in 
terms of investments and borrowings;

 Revenue Collection (Section 6) – considers progress-to-date in 
collecting the Council Tax and Business Rates; and

Page 12



2 General Fund Revenue Account

2.1 This section of the report considers the financial performance of the General 
Fund Revenue Account against budget by setting out variations in income and 
expenditure and funding received by the Council. 

Service 2017/18 
Budget

Projected 
Outturn 
2017/18

Variance
Use of 

Earmarked 
Reserves

 £ £ £ £
Alliance  Management Team 500,990 481,379 (19,611) -
Audit 95,860 93,592 (2,268) -
ICT 708,010 629,136 (78,874) -
Human Resources 65,860 52,756 (13,104) -
Member Services 309,800 260,775 (49,025) -
Property Services 1,157,710 1,273,451 115,741 75,321
Benefits 900 (109,348) (110,248) -
Planning Applications (24,310) (114,323) (90,013) -
Building Control (79,790) (16,364) 63,426 -
Customer Services 584,800 543,469 (41,331) -
Legal Services 225,670 191,637 (34,033) -
Electoral Services 84,470 24,658 (59,812) (26,680)
Licensing and Land Charges (221,710) (225,179) (3,469) -
Regeneration 435,500 449,909 14,409 (35,485)
Communities and Cultural 427,400 442,262 14,862 60,775
Housing Strategy 58,650 (33,802) (92,452) (80,533)
Transformation 191,810 191,531 (279) -
Community Safety and Enforcement 175,600 145,627 (29,973) -
Finance, Income and Procurement 387,560 465,009 77,449 23,505
Corporate Finance* 1,962,970 1,572,452 (390,518) 2,537
Waste Collection 1,976,750 2,056,251 79,501 -
Street Scene 358,150 337,223 (20,927) -
Leisure Services 640,890 586,487 (54,403) -
Horticulture 583,290 542,537 (40,753) 6,615
Visitor Services (409,490) (361,572) 47,918 -
Environmental Health 439,960 440,909 949 -
    
Net Total of Services 10,637,300 9,920,462 (716,838) 26,055
    
Net Interest (357,870) (393,583) (35,713)

10,279,430 9,526,879 (752,551)

Funding   : external (9,751,040) (10,481,690) (730,650)
                 : reserves - 
contribution/(use) (528,390) (542,265) (13,875)

    
Projected (Surplus)/Deficit - (1,497,076) (1,497,076) 26,055
    

* In previous quarters Staff costs were budgeted and recorded in Finance & Procurement.  They were 
considered a corporate resource to be the main source of savings realised by the Authority’s Efficiency and 
Rationalisation Programme, However to show the true use of resources by individual services it is necessary to 
include the actual staff  costs incurred.  Therefore the Quarter Four provisional outturn position includes the 
actual staff costs (and matching budgets) at the service level.

Page 13



2.2 A revenue budget of £10,279,430 was set for 2017/18.  The table above 
shows how this budget has been allocated to services.

2.3 The provisional outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for the year is 
£8,782,354.  This represents a projected surplus for the year of £1,497,076. 

2.4 There were five significant overspends on the General Fund Revenue Account:

 Property (£115,741 overspend) – The most significant pressure on the 
service budgets was an overspend of some £208,000 on repairs and 
maintenance. However owing to the nature of the repairs £75,321 of the 
Authority’s earmarked Health and Safety reserve has been used to meet 
the additional costs (see 2.6).  Savings against Non-Domestic Rates and 
Utility budgets reduced the overall overspend.

 Building Control (£63,426 overspend) – while operational costs were 
reduced by some £52,000 this could not offset the larger decrease in 
income suffered by the service.  

 Finance, Income and Procurement (£77,449 overspend) - The Recovery 
function is around £60,000 over budget owing to lower than expected 
summons income due to the changes implemented on the calculation of 
summons/liability order costs. System modifications implemented in Local 
Taxation, in line with changes to Non-Domestic Rates legislation, have 
taken the service £19,000 over budget.  The additional costs, of around 
£23,500, have been funded out of an existing earmarked reserve at the 
year end (see 2.6).

 Waste Collection (£79,501 overspend) - While income from container hire 
was some £15,000 above budget this was more than offset by overspends 
elsewhere.  Repair costs of the ageing vehicle fleet were £15,000 above 
expectations and gate fees were £16,000 above budget.  But the largest 
single factor was a reduction in the income generated by paper recycling.  
This reflected both a reduction in the tonnages collected and the price 
earned.

 Visitor Services (£47,918 overspend) – Museum running costs were some 
£14,000 above budget. There were also overspends within the market 
service amounting to around £30,000. The initiative at Cheadle accounted 
for £4,000 of this but the rest was down to overspends on Leek markets’ 
running costs such as repairs and refuse disposal.

2.5 There were eight significant underspends on the General Fund Revenue 
Account:

 ICT (£78,874 underspend) – savings have accrued from lower than 
expected spend across a range of service activities (telephony, system 
upgrades, consultancy, ad-hoc projects). 

 Member Services (£49,025 underspend) – A £10,000 grant from the Police 
and Crime Commissioner contributed to an overall surplus for the year.  
However the majority of the underspend arose from savings against 
member allowance and subsistence costs.

 Benefits (£110,248 underspend) – the administrative costs of the service 
were some £43,000 below budget owing to savings on spend and receipt of 
£37,000 in grants towards implementing government initiatives and process 
changes. The year also saw an emphasis on the pursuit of overpaid 

Page 14



benefits by means of raising invoices to claimants. The act of raising 
invoices results in the service being credited as if they were all paid on 
issue. As realistically not all invoices will be paid the income accruing to the 
service was offset by a substantial bad debts provision.

 Planning Applications (£90,013 underspend) – the majority of the 
underspend relates to additional planning fee income (planning fees were 
increased nationally in January 2018)  

 Electoral Services (£59,812 underspend) -  The service budgets to make an 
annual contribution in to an earmarked reserve in order to smooth the costs 
of the council’s elections over the term of the administration.  The budgeted 
underspend to fund this contribution for 2017/18 is £26,680 (see 2.6)
A further £20,000 underspend resulted from the in-year costs relating to 
Individual Elector Registration being below the level of funding received 
from Central Government in the form of Section 31 grant.

 Housing Strategy (£92,452 underspend) - Some £85,000 in Government 
grants were received in year to support actions to be taken by the Authority 
in response to the Homelessness Reduction Act. As the majority of 
initiatives identified under the Authority’s Homeless Strategy did not take 
place in 2017/18 this funding has been carried forward as an earmarked 
reserve (see 2.6).

 Corporate Finance (£390,518 underspend) - Corporate Finance records the 
Authority’s performance against its efficiency savings target and the 
consolidation of savings against corporate budgets such as for employee 
costs.  This cashing-up exercise has been completed and as reported at 
section 3 below, the saving target for the year was achieved. In addition 
significant savings have accrued against corporate staff and inflation 
contingency budgets.  The net impact of staff turnover and vacancies has 
contributed £300,000 while a saving of £60,000 has accrued from lower 
than anticipated inflationary pressures.

 Leisure Services (£54,403 underspend) – A new leisure development 
strategy was finalised in July. The full roll out of its programmes was not 
completed in 2017/18 generating an underspend of some £18,000. There 
were further underspends across a number of service budgets including 
some £13,000 saved against the Leisure Centre repairs budget 
  

2.6 The actual level of funding achieved in the year was £744,525 above the 
original estimate owing to variances across the following income streams;

External Funding: (£730,650)

 Business Rates Retention (£725,220):
- An increase of £174,510 in the level of retained business rates is 

anticipated owing to increases in business rates income prudently not 
assumed in the budget because of uncertainties surrounding the 2017 
revaluation and appeals provision.

- Following new information provided by the Valuation Office Agency, the 
DCLG has adjusted the tariff payable on business rates for the year for 
all Councils. This has had a positive effect for this Council and 
increases the level of retained business rates by £114,510.

- An increase of £412,200 is anticipated resulting from additional S31 
grants to fund the new reliefs not known at the budget setting stage for 
Local Discretionary Relief, Supporting Small Businesses, Pub Relief 

Page 15



and the change in thresholds on Small Business Rate Relief.  These 
grants are credited to the General Fund in the year and the associated 
reliefs have the opposite effect of increasing the Collection Fund deficit 
to be distributed the following year.

- The resulting reduction in NNDR income from these additional reliefs 
also has the effect of reducing the net levy payable to the Staffordshire 
Pool, which improves the Council’s retention by £24,000.

In line with the Medium Term Financial Plan requirements the increased deficit 
in 2018/19, as a result of accounting for business rates appeals and reliefs, will 
need to be accommodated by the use of the Authority’s reserves (see 2.11).

Use of Reserves: (£13,875)

 There was a £516,210 drawdown of reserves included in the 2017/18 
budget. As detailed in 2.8 instead of a use of reserves they were actually 
increased by £980,866.

 In addition, £12,180 was budgeted to be drawn from earmarked reserves – 
the actual amount drawn from earmarked reserves in 2017/18 was £26,055 
(as shown in the table in 2.1)

Earmarked:

 Property Services £75,321 use: the cost of resolving urgent health and 
safety works at the Council’s properties is to be covered out of this reserve.

 Electoral Services £26,680 contribution: this is a budgeted annual 
contribution in to a reserve earmarked to spread the cost of the District’s 
elections over the term of a council.

 Regeneration £35,485 contribution: relating to New Burdens monies 
received in 2017/18 which will be applied in 2018/19

 Communities and Cultural £60,775 use: To facilitate the fact that Local 
Strategic Partnership projects often take place in a different year to when 
the funding is received an earmarked reserve is used to carry funds 
between years.  The use of this reserve reflects the level of such activities 
being progressed by the service in 2017/18.

 Housing Strategy £80,533 contribution: The Authority has received 
significant funding from Central Government towards the cost of satisfying 
the requirements of the Homelessness Reduction Act.  As the majority of 
actions were only to come into effect after the financial year end an 
earmarked reserve has been used to carry the funding forward to future 
years.

 Finance, Income and Procurement £23,505 use: the cost of updating the 
Business Rates software following legislative changes has been part funded 
out of a reserve created from Government funding received in prior years.

 Corporate Finance £2,537 use: the Authority occasionally suffers a charge 
arising from its historical liability with Municipal Mutual Insurance. The 
Authority’s Insurance Reserve is used to fund these irregular charges.

 Horticulture £6,615 use: Works on Recreation Grounds and Open Spaces 
are part funded each year by drawing down on Section 106 monies 
previously received from Developers as part of their planning obligations.  

Page 16



General Fund Revenue Reserves      

2.7 The provisional outturn for the year on the General Fund Revenue Account was 
a £1,497,076 surplus.  

2.8 The surplus generated is calculated inclusive of the £516,210 use of general 
reserves budgeted for 2017/18. If this budgeted contribution is excluded the 
£980,866 that remains represents the amount by which the Authority’s 
contingency reserves have increased.

2.9 The Authority’s calculated minimum for its contingency reserve is £1,000,000.  
A review of the Authority’s reserves has been performed to identify areas where 
earmarking for future projects was considered prudent while maintaining a 
satisfactory level for contingency. As a result the following moves into 
earmarked reserves are proposed;

- £1,500,000 added to an earmarked reserve set aside to fund capital 
expenditure and reduce the overall cost of borrowing. It is anticipated that 
this will be applied to acquiring vehicles and equipment for Alliance 
Environmental Services Limited. 

- £57,000 added to the Authority’s earmarked Elections reserve which exists 
to spread the cost of the Authority’s quadrennial election over the life of a 
council.

2.10 In addition the balance of £60,000 on the Growth earmarked reserve has been 
returned to Contingency. The reserve was not considered necessary as the 
business promotion activities it was created to fund can be supported out of 
existing revenue budgets.

2.11 The effect of these changes results in a balance on general fund reserves as at 
31st March 2018 of £3.108 million – which is £2.108 million above minimum 
contingency. The current Medium Term Financial Plan, which accommodates 
the £0.412m deficit on the Collection Fund (see 2.6),  expects to utilise a net 
£0.3m (£793,000 drawdown required 2018/9) of general contingency reserves 
to support the revenue budget over the next four years 2018/19 – 2021/22.  
This is however dependent on the realisation of the Efficiency Plan.

Page 17



3. Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme

3.1 This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2017/18.

3.2 The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2017) 
included a new four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation 
Strategy targeting savings of £3.14 million.  This was required to balance the 
forecast budget deficit position of £2.7m and also the carry forward of 
unachieved efficiencies from 2016/17 of £0.4m

3.3 The new Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy will have the effect of both 
reducing expenditure and increasing income. The need to grow income is now 
more of a priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing. The 
strategy has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting 
frontline service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to enable 
the Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the established 
priorities set out in the Corporate Plan.

3.4 There are five areas of focus:

 Major Procurements - There is the opportunity to focus attention on a 
number of large service functions which are currently provided by an 
external contractor / supplier. A number of significant contracts are coming 
to an end. This will also allow a fundamental review of these services with 
proper consideration of the current financial constraints.  The contract 
commitments have sometimes restricted the opportunity to align services 
across the alliance with High Peak.  The individual projects will focus on 
Waste Collection & Environment Services, Leisure Management and 
Facilities Management

 Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of 
rationalising the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in 
order to allow for the necessary capital investment

 Growth – development of a clear focus upon housing and economic 
growth based upon the emerging Local Plan. 

 Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing sources 
on income and a drive towards identifying new sources of income

 Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority 
areas of spend e.g. management arrangements, channel shift, non-
statutory services 

3.5 The 2017/18 budget provides for the achievement of £661,000 of such savings 
in year – with a significant focus on income generation and management 
structure review. 

3.6 At the end of Quarter 4, £661,000 has been taken against the overall Efficiency 
programme, thus achieving the savings target for the year.  This total relates to 
management review savings, additional income from car parking and recycling, 
channel shift project savings, corporate staffing budget savings, the result of 
agency / vacancy reviews within Operational Services, and a reduction in 
postage and printing costs.

Page 18



3.7 The Authority carries a reserve of £492,000 earmarked to support the Strategy 
which can be drawn on to offset any one-off and short term costs from the 
service review process and consequent shortfall against the efficiency target.  It 
has not been necessary to draw on this reserve in 2017/18 so it remains intact 
to underwrite performance against future savings targets in the Efficiency 
Programme.

Page 19



4. Capital Programme 

4.1 This section of the report provides an update on the Council’s Capital 
Programme.

4.2 The revised General Fund Capital Programme for 2017/18, as updated and 
approved in February, was set at £1,712,470

4.3 The 2017/18 provisional outturn at Mach 2018 is summarised in the table 
below, with further detail provided at Annex A. 

Service
 

2017/18 
Approved 

Budget
2017/18
Outturn Variance 

£ £ £
Housing Standards 501,630 517,824 16,194
Property Services 932,840          770,830 (162,010)
ICT 104,310         104,303 (8)
Leisure Services 14,000           12,498 (1,502)
Regeneration 51,760            36,041 (15,719)
Horticulture 107,930 107,929 (1)
Total Spending 1,712,470 1,549,424 (163,046)

   
Grants External Contributions 775,850 850,779 74,929
Capital Receipts - 38,051 38,051
Capital Reserve 420,000 7,511 (412,489)
Planning obligations 16,700 16,710 10
Borrowing           499,920 636,373 136,453
Total Funding 1,712,470 1,549,424 (163,046)

4.4 The Council incurred Capital Expenditure of £1,549,424 during the year against 
the revised budget of £1,712,470. This represents an under spend of £163,046  
The majority of the underspend reflects the impact of Capital Programme 
projects which are either behind schedule or have progressed quicker than 
expected with the most significant variance being:

 Property Services (£162,010 underspend) caused primarily by delays in 
progress of a number of asset management projects where expenditure in 
the year was below or ahead of forecast. These variances will be carried 
forward into 2018/19 to fund those projects. Also included in the variance 
is a (£58,127 underspend) recorded against roofing works at Biddulph 
Valley Leisure Centre. The project was completed in the year and the 
works required were less than originally anticipated. 

4.5 Consequently, capital funding applied to the 2017/18 Capital Programme is 
lower than forecast, reflecting the of incidence and timing of capital spend

Page 20



4.6 As a result of the variances detailed above, approval is sought to increase the 
capital budgets for 2018/19 as shown in the table below:-

Capital Programme 'Carry Forwards' (2017/18 to 2018/19)

Service
 Variance

Carry 
Forward to 

2017/18 
Over/(Under) 

Spend

Over/ 
(Under)spend  

Completed 
Projects

£ £ £
Housing 16,194 16,194 -
Property Services (162,010) (103,883) (58,127)
ICT (8) - (8)
Leisure Services (1,502) - (1,502)
Regeneration (15,719) (5,524) (10,195)
Horticulture (1) - (1)

Total (163,046) (93,213) (69,833)

Page 21



5. Treasury Management

5.1 This section of the report sets out the key treasury management statistics in 
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a 
high level treasury management summary.  The Audit and Accounts Committee 
receives detailed operational updates on treasury management.

Investments

5.2 Cash Investments held on the 31st March 2018 totalled £5.6 million. Interest 
earned on these investments to the end of Quarter 4 totalled £37,331. The 
average level of funds available for investment to the end of Quarter 4 was £9.8 
million.

5.3 The Council budgeted to receive £39,000 in investment income in 2017/18. The 
budget was set with the expectation that the low interest environment would 
continue, however the rates available on fixed investment opportunities reduced 
further still in the first half of the year and internal borrowing is reducing 
balances available for investment. The effects of these factors were largely 
offset by increasing interest rates following the increase in the Bank of England 
base rate on 2nd November. Therefore only a small shortfall of £1,669 is 
reported against the budget.

Ascent Joint Venture

5.4 Ascent (the joint venture company set up to deliver affordable housing across 
the District) had drawn the full £5 million debenture facility by the end of 
2014/15. Interest is charged at 2%, therefore the budgeted interest income for 
the year is £100,000; this has been achieved.

5.5 The balance on the loan facility to Ascent remains at £14 million. There were no 
further drawdowns of the loan during 2017/18. The first tranche of the loan 
(£7m) was due for repayment on 11th October 2017, the fifth anniversary of the 
original drawdown. This was refinanced for a period of 1 year whilst the Ascent 
LLP business plan is reviewed. 

5.6 Interest charged is based on the PWLB rate on the date of the drawdown plus a 
1.25% risk premium. The budget of interest income related to the loan was set 
at £474,270 – this included £373,660 due from the original loan drawdowns and 
£100,610 relating to the continuation of the first tranche of the loan. The 
refinanced loan is charged interest at 2.61%, which is lower than the original 
drawdowns in this tranche (average 3.53%) due to the shorter period; therefore 
there a shortfall of £15,000 reported against the budget.

Borrowing

5.7 Total debt outstanding as at 31st March 2018 stood at £12.9 million. £12 million 
has been used to fund the Ascent Loan, the remaining £0.9 million relates to 
finance leases.

5.8 The Council has budgeted to incur £255,400 in interest charges in 2017/18. 
This was based on the existing Ascent Loan Balance of £14 million and a £1.7 

Page 22



million general fund borrowing requirement in the current year capital 
programme. 

5.9 The refinancing of a maturing debt of £2 million relating to the Ascent Loan in 
2016/17 has been delayed, instead being funded internally for the duration of 
this year. In addition to this, no ‘new’ external borrowing has taken place during 
the year. The delayed borrowing has achieved savings on total borrowing costs 
of £52,000. 

Page 23



6        Revenue Collection

6.1 This section of the report details progress to date in collecting the Council Tax, 
Business Rates and Sundry Debt.

6.2 The Quarter 4 collection rate outturn for the year 2017/18 was as follows:

 Council Tax – 98.6% of Council Tax was collected by 31st March 2018 
(target achieved), compared to 98.7% for the same period last year.

 Business Rates – 98.5% of Business Rates was collected by 31st March 
2018 (target achieved), compared with 98.8% for the same period last year.

6.3 At the end of Quarter Four the value of sundry debt that was over 60 days old 
was £110,423 which compares with £127,221 at 31st March 2017.

Page 24



ANNEX A

Capital Programme Out-Turn 2017-2018

Capital Schemes
 

2017/18 
Approved 

Budget
2017/18 
Outturn Variance C/fwd to 

2018/19

Over / 
(Underspend) 

Completed 
Projects

£ £ £ £ £

Housing Standards     

Private Sector Grants 501,630 517,824 16,194 16,194              -   
501,630 517,824 16,194 16,194              -   

Property Services      
Asset Management Plan 932,840      770,830 (162,010) (103,883) (58,127)

932,840      770,830 (162,010) (103,883) (58,127)
ICT 104,310      104,303 (8)              -   (8)

104,310      104,303 (8)              -   (8)
Leisure Services      
Sports - Small Schemes 14,000       12,498 (1,502)              -   (1,502)

14,000       12,498 (1,502)              -   (1,502)
Regeneration      
Moorlands Partnership Grants 51,760       36,041 (15,719)       (5,524)      (10,195) 

51,760 36,041 (15,719)       (5,524) (10,195)
Horticulture      
Play - Projects 107,930 107,929 (1)              -   (1)

107,930 107,929 (1)              -   (1)
      

Total Programme 1,712,470 1,549,424 (163,046) (93,213) (69,833)

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

2017/18

Fourth Quarter
 Procurement 

Review

Page 27



1. Introduction

1.1 A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from the implementation of the 
Procurement Strategy which was agreed by Councillors in April 2014. 

1.2 The strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives link closely with the 
Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives.  The key actions in 
in the strategy included:

 Delivery of cashable efficiency savings to support the Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy by tendering, retendering and renegotiating of 
contracts.

 Development and embedding a professional procurement unit of 
excellence to deliver on going efficiency savings for the Councils

 Revising Financial and Procurement Procedure Rules to support 
transparency, timeliness of contract award and greater control

 Expanding the usage of electronic procurement systems for works as 
appropriate

 Increasing the levels of spend covered by the contract
 Implementation of e-tendering
 Supporting the local economy by increasing the number of procurement 

opportunities advertised and adoption of a local business concordat

1.3 Significant progress has been made since April 2014, in conjunction with the 
external support of the Alliance Transformation partner Northgate Information 
Solutions.  The reliance on this external support ended when a new staffing 
structure was implemented as part of the service review process.  This has 
enabled new working initiatives to be implemented, including the integration of 
the Creditors function into Procurement will ensure the ‘Purchase to Pay 
Cycle’ is robust and able to meet the demands of efficiency and performance 
targets.

1.4 Additionally, the introduction of new systems and electronic processes now 
enables the Alliance to be fully compliant in accordance with Transparency 
Code and Public Contract Regulations requirements – with all procurement 
opportunities over £5,000 now openly advertised.

1.5 The Procurement Procedure Rules have been recently updated and the 
updated Procurement Strategy is scheduled for presentation during 2018/19. 

Page 28



2. Fourth Quarter Completed Procurements

2.1 The activity supported by the procurement function during the fourth quarter 
January – March 2018 is summarised below:

Third Quarter  High Value 
(>£172,000)

Low Value    
(<£172,000)

Total

SMDC Only - 21 21
JOINT (SM/HP) - 9 9
TOTAL - 30 30

2.2 Annex A provides details of the 30 procurements exercises reviewed and 
completed during Quarter 4.

2.4 As a result of procurement activity, cashable savings of £3,370 have been 
achieved in 2017/18 which have been offset against the efficiency programme. 

2.5 A number of one-off procurement exercises have also taken place – which 
may result in savings against overall budget. This will be assessed when 
reviewing overall expenditure and undertaking a comparison against budget to 
identify where budgets can be reduced due to procurement activity.   

Page 29



3. 2018/19 Procurement Forward Plan

3.1 The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or 
high value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for completion in 
2018/19.

2017/18

Activity

High Value 

( £172,000)

 Low Value

 (<£172,000)
Total

SMDC 1 15 16
JOINT (SM/HP) 6 18 24
TOTAL 7 33 40

In addition to the above, there are 147 listed entries brought forward from 
previous years for review for both HPBC and SMDC. To be included as carry 
forwards to 2018/19 programme.

3.2 Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled 
for delivery in 2018/19 includes:-

 Facilities Management Contract
 Leisure Centre Management 
 CCTV Maintenance and Monitoring Arrangements
 Leek Markets Logistic Support (Market stalls)

Page 30



4. Procurement Performance

4.1 This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement 
activity and the payment of suppliers.

4.2 Performance for the fourth quarter is highlighted below:

Performance Indicator Target Performance at 
31st March 2018

% of Alliance Procurement 
Activity on Forward Plan 65% 71%

Annual contract spend as % 
of gross expenditure budget 72% 79%

% of invoices paid within 30 
days 95% 96%

Page 31



ANNEX A

Fourth Quarter Procurement Activity Completed 

NB: REMOVE NO PROCUREMENT REQUIRED represents the review outcome against the individual 
work plan item listed, to advise if an individual competitive procedure is required.  Items may not be 
required as the project is not to be procured, renewed or that it has been completed under an 
alternative existing contract arrangement

Auth Contract name Brief contract 
description

Recurring 
or One-off 
contracts

Service 
Area

Procedure 
/ Work 
Plan 
Review

AWARD DETAIL Term 
YRS

TVC

SMDC Joliffe Street - Wall 
scheme

Works associated 
with retaining wall 
(works completed)

One-off

(Works)

Assets 
Capital 
Projects

TENDER WHITEHOUSE 
CONSTRUCTION

1 99,270

SMDC Leek Industrial Units 
Refurbishments

Works Contract to 
Refurb of 
Industrial Units at 
SMDC region

One-off

(Works)

Assets 
Capital 
Projects

TENDER TRADES AND 
LABOURERS 
LTD

1 31,588

SMDC Delivery of Affordable 
Warmth 

A single point of 
contact service 
lead related to 
affordable warmth 
that will provide 
support and 
advice - 
Efficiency, fuel 
bills and debt 
reducing fuel 
poverty

One-off

(Service 
Contract)

Democratic 
& 
Community - 
Communities 
& 
Partnerships

TENDER BEAT THE COLD 1 12,000

SMDC School Sport 
Partnership 
Consultancy

Support to 
establish the 
School Sport 
Partnership with 
all Staffordshire 
Moorlands 
Schools

One-off

(Service 
Contract)

Operational 
Services - 
Leisure

RFQ YOUTH SPORTS 
TRUST

1 2,123

SMDC Potholes Repair 
Wetley Moor 
Common

Maintenance of 
vehicle access for 
tracks to 
residential 
properties at 
Wetley Moor.  
Access tacks also 
form part of 
promoted walking 
routes and 
essential vehicular 
routes for 
maintenance work 
at Wetley Moor. 
Annual repair 
required to rectify 
potholes in hard 
surfaced roads.

One-off

(Works)

Operational 
Services - 
Horticulture

RFQ WRIGHTS 
LANDSCAPES 
LTD

[-] 3,250

SMDC New Barrier at 
Fowlchurch Depot

The gate was 
damaged beyond 
repair and 
required replacing 
to secure access 
to the Depot

One-Off

(Supply 
and Install)

Assets 
Capital 
Projects

RFQ NORTON 
INDUSTRIAL 
DOORS LTD

[-] 2,848

Page 32



Auth Contract name Brief contract 
description

Recurring 
or One-off 
contracts

Service 
Area

Procedure 
/ Work 
Plan 
Review

AWARD DETAIL Term 
YRS

TVC

SMDC Repair to Potholes in 
access Tracks as 
required (additional 
requirement)

Maintenance of 
access tracks as 
required under 
statutory 
obligations for 
vehicular site 
access and 
access to 
residential 
properties

One-Off

(Works)

Operational 
Services - 
Horticulture

RFQ WRIGHTS 
LANDSCAPES 
LTD

[-] 2,750

SMDC Water level 
monitoring at Hales 
Hall Pool

Monitoring of 
water levels at 
Hales Hall Pool 
reservoir including 
quarterly visits 
and management 
of telemetry and 
alarm system

Recurring

(Service 
Contract)

Operational 
Services - 
Horticulture

SINGLE 
SOURCE

WSP Ltd [-] 2,640

SMDC SMLC Sports Hall - 
Asbestos 
Encapsulation Survey 
and report

Appointment of 
specialist 
Asbestos 
consultancy to 
complete full 
survey and 
produce 
methodology for 
leaseholder to 
complete 
encapsulation 
works 

One-Off

(Service)

Assets 
Capital 
Projects

RFQ TERSUS 
CONSULTANCY 
LTD

[-] 585

SMDC South Moorlands 
Leisure Centre: 
Repair and 
Encapsulation of 
plant room ceiling

Remedial Works One-Off

(Works)

Assets 
Capital 
Projects

RFQ AIB SOLUTIONS 
LTD

[-] 260

SMDC Fowlchurch Depot - 
Demolition of 
recycling shed

Demolition of 
recycling shed

One-Off Assets 
Capital 
Projects

EXISTING 
CONTRACT

DCC 
(COMPLETED 
UNDER FM 
CONTRACT)

[-] [-]

SMDC Leek Markets 
Operational 
Partnership

External delivery 
of Leek Markets 
Operation

Recurring Visitor 
Services - 
Tourism & 
Markets

OJEU
OPEN 
TENDER

PROCEDURE 
SUSPENDED

[-] [-]

SMDC Moorlands House 
relocation of Server 
Room and Internal 
Alterations

Alterations to 
Moorlands House 
inc Server Room

One-Off Assets 
Capital 
Projects

REVIEW PROJECT 
SUSPENDED – 
alterations will be 
covered under 
P3515 (LIVE WP 
ref: 731)

[-] [-]

SMDC 8&8A Market Street 
Repairs

Structural Repairs One-Off Assets 
Capital 
Projects

REVIEW REMOVE
DUPLICATED 
ITEM REF 790 
LIVE

[-] [-]

SMDC Biddulph Grange 
Country Park 

Upgrade of the 
fire system

One-Off Assets 
Capital 
Projects

REVIEW REMOVE NO 
PROCUREMENT 
REQUIRED

[-] [-]

Page 33



Auth Contract name Brief contract 
description

Recurring 
or One-off 
contracts

Service 
Area

Procedure 
/ Work 
Plan 
Review

AWARD DETAIL Term 
YRS

TVC

SMDC Vehicle leasing 
administration 

Car leasing 
scheme 
administration 

Recurring Finance REVIEW REMOVE NO 
PROCURMEENT 
REQUIRED

[-] [-]

SMDC Refurbishment of 
Hoops at SMLC 
Basket Ball Courts

Refurbishment of 
existing facilities

One-Off Assets 
Capital 
Projects

REVIEW REMOVE NO 
PROCURMEENT 
REQUIRED

[-] [-]

SMDC Biddulph Valley 
Leisure Centre – 
Lintels repairs

Works on 
specified Lintels 

One-Off Assets 
Capital 
Projects

REVIEW REMOVE NO 
PROCURMEENT 
REQUIRED

[-] [-]

SMDC Nicholson Institute 
Re-plaster Library

Remedial works to 
plaster

One-Off Assets 
Capital 
Projects

REVIEW REMOVE NO 
PROCURMEENT 
REQUIRED

[-] [-]

SMDC Supply and lease of 
‘E-bus’

Lease of E-Bus Recurring Customer 
Services

REVIEW REMOVE NO 
PROCURMENT 
REQUIRED

[-] [-]

SMDC Digital Copier Rental Hire of print output 
machines

Recurring Customer 
Services

REVIEW REMOVE NO 
PROCURMENT 
REQUIRED

INCORPORATED IN 
WIDER PRINT 

RATIONALISATION 
REVIEW

Fourth Quarter Procurement Activity Completed - JOINT

Auth Contract name Brief contract 
description

Recurring 
or One-off 
contracts

Service 
Area

Procedure 
/ Work 
Plan 
Review

AWARD DETAIL Term 
YRS

TVC

JOINT Pest Control 
Products Provider

To purchase all 
pest control 
equipment & 
pesticides

Recurring

(Supply)

Regulatory 
Services - 
Environment
al Health

FRAME
WORK - 
MINI 
COMP

KILGERM 3 30,000

HP
£21,000

SM
£19,000

JOINT Property 
Management 
Landlord and Tenant 
lease renewals - 
Consultancy 
Appointment

Appointment of 
External 
Surveyors to 
review current 
rental properties 
and Assets owned 
by HPBC and 
SMDC

One-off

(Service 
Contract)

Assets 
Capital 
Projects

RFQ MOUNSEY 
SURVEYORS 
LTD

1 3,225

50% 
HP/SM

JOINT Media Advertising 
Agents
Public Notices

Third party agent 
providing media 
services for the 
Authorities Public 
notice in local 
papers (Planning 
Applications)

Recurring Customer 
Services

RFQ Option to source directly from 
publications. Business change 
process SMDC, currently under 
review.  Efficiency savings identified.  
Not required to procure a fixed term 
service contract. This will be SOLE 
Supplier sourcing against negotiated 
rates.

Page 34



Auth Contract name Brief contract 
description

Recurring 
or One-off 
contracts

Service 
Area

Procedure 
/ Work 
Plan 
Review

AWARD DETAIL Term 
YRS

TVC

JOINT Self-serve on phones Initially provision 
of out of hours 
self-service on 
revs and bens, 
and waste 
telephone lines.  
Extended to 
queue busting 
facility and 
potentially full 
front-end service

Recurring Customer 
Services

REVIEW REMOVE_NO 
PROCUREMENT 
REQUIRED

[-] [-]

JOINT Provision of 
printers/photocopiers

Supply of 
printer/equipment 
and all 
consumables

Recurring Customer 
Services

REVIEW REMOVE_NO 
PROCUREMENT 
REQUIRED

INCORPORATED IN 
WIDER PRINT 
RATIONALISATION 
REVIEW

JOINT Financial IT System 
Integra

Finance and e-
procurement 
system

Recurring OD & 
Trans_ICT

REVIEW REMOVE_NO 
PROCUREMENT 
REQUIRED

[-] [-]

JOINT WAN_IT HPBC WAN 
(includes HPBC to 
SMDC link & 
Buxton to Glossop 
link) is with BT
SMDC WAN 
(includes MH to 
Cheadle & 
Biddulph and link 
into SCC network) 
is with Staffs 
County Council

Recurring OD & 
Trans_ICT

REVIEW REMOVE_NO 
PROCUREMENT 
REQUIRED

[-] [-]

JOINT PARIS e-payments Electronic 
payments system

Recurring OD & 
Trans_ICT

REVIEW REMOVE_NO 
PROCUREMENT 
REQUIRED

[-] [-]

JOINT FOI Admin Workflow System to enable 
tracking and work 
flow for FOI 
Requests

Recurring OD & 
Trans_ICT

REVIEW REMOVE_NO 
PROCUREMENT 
REQUIRED

[-] [-]

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



Staffs Moorlands Performance and Customer Feedback Report: 2017/18 (Q4 Outturn)

P
age 37



Staffordshire Moorlands Q4 Summary 

The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at Staffs Moorlands for the period April 2017 to March 2018 in 
relation to the Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects. The report also provides an overview of 
the results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of how we handle and learn from complaints and the level of comments and 
compliments.      

Performance Overview 

There are 109 ‘monthly’, ‘quarterly’, and ‘annual only’ reported performance measures at Staffs Moorlands, which represents a reduction on 
last year. The chart below shows the results for quarter four against 58 indicators and reveals an improvement of 10% on last year’s outturn. 
The actions being taken to address the ‘off track’ measures are detailed at the end of this report.

The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the revised 2017-2019 
Corporate Plan. The table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the current status of these projects / actions. 

64%

25%

11%

Better Weaker No Change
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%

   

Customer Feedback Overview 

At the close of 2017/18 the Council exceeded its targets for responding to complaints within 10 days and for low levels of repeat complaints. 
The trend in the number of stage 1 complaints received compared to the same period last year is also positive with a 14% reduction.   

Off Track

In danger of going off Track

On Track

Not yet started / Decision 
awaited

Complete / Closed

76%

21%

3%

Target met Off track N/A
0

20

40

60

80

P
age 38



Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and work 

Target Met Off Track
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

SM Aim 1: March Results 2017/18

Better Weaker No Change
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

SM Aim 1: March Trends 2017/18 

The only indicator which failed to meet its target in 2017/18 was Housing Benefit processing times for new claims, which came in at 19.21 days 
against a target of 18 days. The result was an improvement on the previous year’s outturn of 20 days. Overall the Council has performed 
strongly against the vast majority of its performance targets under Aim One.     

Celebrating Success: 

At the close of 2017/18 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 Households in temporary accommodation
 External funding awarded in support of the sport and physical activity strategy
 housing benefit change of circumstance processing and accuracy of determinations
 Homelessness prevention (cases assisted).

P
age 39



Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action Status Commentary – March
Help to ensure, through the scrutiny work programme, that 
partner service provision, particularly health provision for 
the elderly, is effective

Health Visiting Services - Head of Child Health & Well-Being at 
SCC was scheduled to attend the Health Panel on 18th October 
2017. The meeting was cancelled. Meeting of 28/02/18 was 
further delayed due to the weather and is in the process of 
being rearranged.
West Midlands Ambulance Service - Mark Doherty was due to 
provide an annual update to the Health Panel on the 18th 
October 2017. The meeting was cancelled and is in the process 
of being re-arranged.
Royal Stoke University Hospital- Annual Update is now due and 
an invitation will be sent
Staffordshire & Stoke on Trent Partnership NHS Trust & North 
Staffordshire Combined Health Care NHS Trust-The County 
Council have advised that the Chief Executive of the Royal Stoke 
Hospital has recently attended the County Council and under the 
Code of Working between the District and County council, unless 
there are any specific queries relating to the Moorlands, then 
the County Council will lead on scrutiny.
Health watch Staffordshire - Annual Update due beginning of 
2018 to include Care/Nursing Homes and Moorlands Hospital. 

Undertake detailed process benchmarking with high 
performing / low cost councils with a view to identifying 
value for money improvements for Housing Benefit 
processing 

Corporate Plan Priorities and Annual report findings shared with 
senior managers. This has kick started the benchmarking 
activities and the Information Team have provided background 
data packs to facilitate process benchmarking by Managers in 
conjunction with their Finance Business Partners. Service is a 
member of a county-wide managers’ forum looking at benefits 
performance and measures. Post service review our costs have 
greatly reduced and when the latest figures are available will be 
completing site visits to partners.

P
age 40



Priority Action Status Commentary – March
Implement the Council’s new sport and physical activity 
strategy and carry out research into nil cost facility provision 
being achieved by other councils; in order to achieve 
improved health and value for money outcomes    

The appointed consultants have submitted the final reports and 
draft recommendations for consideration. Discussions with key 
members from both authorities taking place over the coming 
months to consider the conclusions and recommendations 
within the reports. Agreement in principal with members for 
way forward.

Undertake a review of the current CCTV system to look at its 
cost-effectiveness in preparation for the expiry of the 
maintenance contract in early 2018

Revised scrutiny reports are being prepared for consideration by 
Councillors. These will hopefully go through the next committee 
cycle. In the meantime, the current monitoring and maintenance 
contracts have been extended for a further 6 months. 

Develop a strategy for further development of affordable 
and specialist housing

Finance to obtain Your Housing update on Business Plan review 
in preparation for October £7m maturity

Develop and agree a new empty properties strategy Action Completed. 
Strategy approved 

Develop a scheme that supports the upgrading of security in 
vulnerable people’s homes

Action Completed.
The Safe and Sound Service has been launched with the aim of 
reducing victimisation by offering additional security to those 
affected by crime or living in fear of crime. The service aims to 
help those in most need by fitting additional security measures 
within the home. The Partnership has funded a handyman 
employed by Moorlands Housing to fit a range of security 
features such as lockable window handles, padlocks, mortice 
latches, door chain etc. The scheme is offered free of charge to 
those in most need and who meet at least one of eligibility 
criteria. There is a low level of demand for the service, which 
reflects the low crime levels in the area. However, it has a huge 
impact on those that have been affected by crime or live in fear 
of crime as simple security precautions offer the reassurance 
required to live a better quality of life without the fear of a 
repeat crime. Over 30 properties have benefited from this 
service making them more secure and less vulnerable and thus 
improving quality of life. 

P
age 41



Priority Action Status Commentary – March
Support the Community Safety Partnership with improved 
provision of outreach workers for dealing with domestic 
violence

Action Completed.
Domestic Violence Police Link Worker Project - to ensure 
support and information is targeted and relevant to the specific 
needs of the victim to help reduce risk to the victim. The role 
seeks to make sure victims are safe and that further violence is 
significantly prevented from happening by signposting the 
relevant support services as quickly as possible. Closer working 
with the Staffordshire Moorlands Police Vulnerability Team 
means that packs containing information about ARCH services 
are now given to the victims at the point the police turn up. 
During the period 2015-16 a total of 231 referrals have been 
received. A total of 81 joint visits were made and 7 lone visits by 
the DV Police Link Worker. A total of 174 victims were 
successfully contacted by telephone.
A total of 113 referrals have been made to ARCH services 
including: refuge, floating support, IDVA (Independent Domestic 
Violence Advisor), Male IDVA, Freedom Programme. Referrals to 
other agencies include, Mind counselling service, housing, FARS, 
social care, Rethink, One Recovery.  A total of 178 information 
packs were sent out/handed out.  During this period the Police 
Link Worker (PLW) received 226 referrals, of which 51 were 
passed onto the IDVA through the MARAC process.  19 referrals 
were made to Floating Support, 4 children were referred to 
ARCH Children and Young People’s Service.  3 were found refuge 
accommodation, 6 referrals were made for the Freedom 
programme and 10 women attended a solicitor appointment at 
the Sunrise Centre. A total of 65 visits were made, of these 49 
were joint visits and 16 were undertaken just by the Police Link 
Worker. 

Work with Staffordshire County Council and other partners 
to ensure an effective partnership with central government

Links to strategic partnerships project above

P
age 42



Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money

Target Met Off Track N/A
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

 SM Aim 2 : March Results 
2017/18

Better Weaker No Change
0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

SM Aim 2 : March Trends 
2017/18

Aim two is also performing strongly with the vast majority of measures meeting their targets and a similar level making improvements on last 
year. One of the off track measures related to the Council’s business units, which have undergone capital works recently that have delayed 
their letting. Assets expect the occupancy levels to return to normal by Q1 of 2018/19.        

Celebrating Success:    

At the close of 2017/18 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 reduction in workplace accidents, twitter followers, press releases used, channel shift contacts, IT system and 
network availability, procurement activity on forward plan, council tax and nndr collected, internal audit 
recommendations implemented on time, FOI requests dealt with on time, complaints dealt with within 10 working 
days, repeat complaints, invoices paid within terms, reduced sundry debt, contracted spend.

P
age 43



Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action Status Commentary - March
Deliver the Channel Shift Programme Digital Portal Launched July 2017 and CRM now switched off. Benefit claims are 

now between 99.5 % and 100% online for both authorities and are integrated into 
the Civica back office system. Changes in Circumstances are 100% online. All 
Council tax discounts and exemptions are available online. Approx. 98% of all other 
benefit forms are available online. Benefits /Savings analysis from programme 
being evaluated. Phase Two of the Digital Portal project is on track. Findings of the 
CGI review to be included. Environmental reporting app being explored. 

Benchmark and review the Council’s 
approach to customer complaints as part 
of the introduction of a new automated 
management system for complaint 
handling and reporting

Action Completed. 
Complaints system configuration is complete and all enhancements/improvements 
are now in place. Final testing and trials successfully completed. Manager training 
schedule completed. 
System went live from 01/04/18 across both authorities.

Develop and implement a plan to identify 
new and innovative ways of generating 
income

All income generation challenge meetings have been completed, a target has been 
included as part of the new efficiency and rationalisation strategy 2017/18 – 20/21. 
Various streams:
Commercial properties- Mandates to be produced, assessment taking place , 
working through project plan. Industrial units will be ready for re-letting following 
procurement process.
Fees and charges- Car Parking income and all inflationary increases approved at Full 
Council. 
Advertising/Sponsorship - Project put back by 8 weeks. Policy to be produced and 
any political implications considered. 
Affordable housing - Chase Your Housing for update on Business Plan review and 
October Maturity of £7m
Empty Homes- Project manager appointed, working group met in Jan to consider 
strategy action plan progress.

Refresh and implement the Asset 
Management Plan, including a review of 
public estate, and ensure adequate 
facilities management arrangements are 
in place

Working group established and new approach to be agreed. The improvement 
programme will be produced prior to the MTFP in Feb 18.

The Facilities Management contract should be in place by October 2018.

P
age 44



Aim 3: Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns and 
villages  

Target Met Off Track
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

SM Aim 3: March Results 2017/18 

Better Weaker No Change
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

SM Aim 3 : March Trends 2017/18 

The Council is performing well against the increased targets for speed of processing the three categories of planning application with 100% of 
major applications determined on time. Staffs Moorlands remains off track for successfully defending planning appeals with only 45% of 
decisions in our favour against a target of 80%. Town centre vacancy rates were recorded as 11.5% at year-end, which is higher than the <10% 
target.         

Celebrating Success:    

At the close of 2017/18 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 Major, Minor and other planning applications processed on time
 % of planning applications with pre-app enquiries

P
age 45



Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action Status Commentary – March
Undertake detailed process benchmarking 
with high performing / low cost councils 
with a view to identifying value for money 
improvements for Planning application 
processing

In Staffs Moorlands our Development Control RO costs have reduced from £598k to 
£369k which places the Council 7th highest out of 19 councils regionally. 
Performance in determining planning applications is ranked 4th for majors, 5th for 
minors and 8th fastest for other applications across the region.

Implement the town deal in Biddulph in 
partnership with Biddulph Town Council

A report was approved by the Cabinet in April for an accelerated housing delivery 
programme in Staffordshire Moorlands. The report sought approval for preparing 
two masterplans in Biddulph. One is for the sites allocated at Wharf Road for 
residential-led mixed use development and the other is for sites allocated at 
Tunstall Road for employment-led mixed use development. Town council have 
commissioned consultants for the mill triangle masterplan with support from 
regeneration team. Consultation with SCC is on-going.

 Support the development of Cornhill and 
improved rail links

Discussions ongoing with all stakeholders and neighbouring land owners regarding 
delivery of the site.

Develop and implement plans to extend 
the public market operations in Leek and 
Cheadle

Authorisation has been given to proceed with the procurement of work to refurbish 
the indoor markets and the MTFP has allocated a budget provision of £300k for the 
project. The contractor and design team will put together a detailed project plan 
which will be communicated on receipt. The wider market improvement strategy 
has been agreed by the portfolio owner and is moving forward satisfactorily.
The market on Greyhound Walk in Cheadle was successfully launched in November, 
this is going well, and as of Friday 23rd March, the footprint has been extended 
onto the car park to accommodate a further 4/5 stalls.

Support the development of London Mill 
as part of a wider redevelopment scheme

The site has now been sold. Discussions ongoing with a range of partners as well as 
neighbouring land owners to consider options for comprehensive development of 
wider Mill Quarter site.

Implement the Growth Fund initiative to 
support small businesses

Project Closed. Capital allocation removed from Medium Term Financial Plan as no 
external application progressed beyond the Business Case phase.

P
age 46



Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment

Target Met Off Track N/A
0%

10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%
SM Aim 4: March Results 2017/18

Better Weaker No Change
0.00%

10.00%
20.00%
30.00%
40.00%
50.00%
60.00%
70.00%
80.00%
90.00%

100.00%

SM Aim 4 : March Trends 2017/18

  

Fly-tipping numbers and missed bin rates cam in off track at year end but despite this aim four remains a very strong area of delivery across 
the Council with the vast majority of targets being met. The N/A at Staffs Moorlands relates to Ladderedge Country Park’s annual Green Flag 
award assessment, the result of which won’t be known until the summer.              

        

Celebrating Success:    

At the close of 2017/18 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 Environmental enforcements and Fixed Penalty Notices Issued, new pest control contracts 
 Street cleanliness standards, community clean-ups and volunteer hours
 Residual household waste levels and recycling rates (estimated)

P
age 47



Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action Status Commentary – March
Work with ANSA and Cheshire East to 
launch Alliance Environmental Services 
Ltd, our new joint venture company, to 
deliver waste, streets and grounds 
maintenance services on behalf of the 
Council in order to achieve improved 
performance and value for money 
outcomes. 

Alliance Environmental Services has been established and phase 1 (the transfer of 
current Veolia contract to AES) is complete. A plan for phase 2 is being developed. 
Next focus is SMDC waste including associated fleet services for approx. July 2018. 
PID under development to be agreed at next project board Feb 18. Report due Feb 
on next cycle setting our proposals for stage 2.

Establish a developer open space 
contributions plan

 

An Open Space Audit and Playing Pitch Strategy have been completed. In addition 
Operational Services have proposed a revised method for calculating developer 
contributions for play, open space and sport / recreation facilities. This proposed 
method is currently being considered by the Councils' appointed consultants who 
are working with the planning policy team as part of the Local Plan process. Subject 
to approval a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) for developer contributions 
will be worked up in June 2018 using these proposed calculations and methods. 
This will provide guidance for developers on the expected contributions they will 
have to make towards play, open space and sport / recreation facility provision as 
part of local developments.

Identify and implement an approach to 
reduce the cost of country parks

Transfer of the Councils’ countryside sites to a specialist provider is still underway. 
A report has been presented to Service Delivery O&S Panel recommending the 
transfer of the management of key Countryside Sites to the Staffordshire Wildlife 
Trust- this was accepted with one caveat regarding Biddulph Grange Country Park. 
Still awaiting decision from Stoke and the matter has been escalated in order to 
progress.

Develop a plan to improve Brough Park 
with Heritage Lottery Fund support

A revised submission is now being prepared for the next funding window in Feb 18, 
however HLF are withdrawing Parks for People funding, which may reduce the 
chance. A report went to Scrutiny in the new year. Capital funding update/MTFP 
need to be re-assessed due to reduced lottery funding.

Reduce the Council’s energy consumption 
and associated costs (through the Asset 
Management Plan)

Working group to be established and new approach to be agreed. The 
improvement programme will be produced prior to the MTFP in Feb 18.

P
age 48



P
age 49



P
age 50



P
age 51



Areas for Improvement: 2017/18 Outturn 

Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2017/18

Result 
2017/18  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Staffs Moorlands

Housing Benefits Processing: 
Time taken to process new 

claims 

Aim 1: Increased supply of 
good quality affordable 

homes

Head of Customer 
Services

18 days 19.21 days Although this target has not been met for 17/18 the 
performance has improved from 20.46 days last 
year. New Claims processes, online forms, Risk 
Based Verification and the customer portal have 
also been implemented over the last 12 months.

Website Quality: Socitm 
Better Connected 

assessment

Aim 2: Easily available 
services provided right first 

time

OD & 
Transformation 

Manager

4 stars 3 stars Part of the Socitm scoring was based on the old 
website in particular the accessibility. Accessibility 
in the new website is much improved.

% & Number of council 
owned business units 

occupied 

Aim 2: More effective use 
of council assets

Assets Manager 92.1% 
(35/38)

84% 
(32/38)

The percentage is down due to the fact there have 
been capital works required which has delayed re-
letting voids. We anticipate we will be back to 
target by the June quarter. 

Income budget variance +/- 5% 21.9%

Expenditure budget variance

Aim 2: Effective use of 
financial and other 

resources to ensure value 
for money

Finance & 
Procurement 

Manager +/- 5% 12%

Based on Q3 data only.

Planning appeals -  % 
successfully defended

80% 45% Detailed report containing measures to improve 
performance on planning appeals is going to the 
next AMT

Agent satisfaction with the 
Planning Service

Aim 3: 
High quality development 
and building control with 

an open for business 
approach

Operations Manager 
– Development 

Services

80% 78% This has improved since last year but uptake of the 
survey continues to be a problem so feedback is 
unlikely to be reflective of general opinion. Move to 
an annual survey planned which will give a more 
accurate picture.

P
age 52



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2017/18

Result 
2017/18  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

% of Empty town centre 
shops 

Aim 3: Flourishing town 
centres 

Regeneration 
Manager

District 
vacancy 
rate of 
<10% 

Average 
11.5% 

New housing in Cheadle & Biddulph (part of Local 
Plan delivery) will support increased footfall/shop 
occupancy levels. 

Individual results as follows: Leek 7.9%, Cheadle 
14.3%, Biddulph 18.2%. 

Missed bins per 100,000 
collections

Aim 4: 
Effective recycling and 

waste management

Head of Operational 
Services

35.5 44.66 The number of missed collections recorded was 
severely hampered by external factors in 2017-18. 
Including changes to the CRM reporting system in 
June 2017 when the numbers of reports increased 
considerably as a result of self serve channels being 
used more regularly. In addition bad weather has 
affected collections during Dec, Jan & Feb resulting 
in the outturn figure being off target. However, 
performance during 2017/18 has improved with 
the number of missed bins per 100,000 reducing 
from 46.49 to 44.66 (2016/17 outturn).

Number of fly tips (exc sec 
46 waste) 

Aim 4: Provision of high 
quality public amenities, 

clean streets and 
environmental health

Democratic and 
Community Services 

Manager 

400 403 Further promotional work and new fly tipping 
campaigns are planned to encourage responsible 
waste disposal.

Joint Alliance Measures

% of appraisals completed 
(due)

Aim 2: 
A high performing and well 

motivated workforce

OD & 
Transformation

100% 84% Some small delays in a couple of areas due to staff 
changes and work deadlines.

P
age 53



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2017/18

Result 
2017/18  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Number of  RIDDOR 
reportable / Lost Time 

(7days) accidents  

Chief Executive 0 7 The target set by members is accepted as an 
aspirational target across the alliance. Accidents 
overall are down and the alliance was successful in 
achieving the prestigious ‘gold’ award from Rospa 
last year in recognition of our commitment to 
health and safety at work.

For a full list of all performance measures and the Q4 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this link. 
http://hpbc.alliance-online.org/transformation/performance-management  

P
age 54

http://hpbc.alliance-online.org/transformation/performance-management


STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel

6th June 2018

Appendices Attached: 
Appendix 1: Annual Report 2017/18 including refreshed Corporate Plan 
2018/19
Appendix 2: Performance Framework 2018/19

1.        Reason for the Report:

1.1 The purpose of this report is to:

 Provide members with an opportunity to scrutinise the draft Performance 
Framework and associated targets for 2018/19

 Present the findings from the Annual Report and how these have 
influenced the Framework and Corporate Plan refresh

 Outline the suggested approach and timescale for approval of the 2018/19 
Performance Framework.         

2. Recommendation

2.1 That Panel comments accordingly and recommends approval by Cabinet.       

3. Executive Summary 

3.1 The Council’s 4-year Corporate Plan (2015-2019) articulates the aims, 
objectives and priority actions, which the Council is working to achieve over 
this period. Its delivery is measured through the Performance Framework, 
which has at its centre the three pillars of value for money - efficiency, 
economy and effectiveness.     

3.2 This report seeks to take stock at the end of year three of the 4-year 
Corporate Plan and refocus the Council’s targets and priority actions for its 
remaining period, based upon current achievements and the findings taken 
from the Annual Report. 

TITLE: Performance Framework 2018/19 
(incorporating the Annual Report 2017/18 and 
revised Corporate Plan 2018-2019)    

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Leader

CONTACT OFFICER: Vanessa Higgins - Information Business 
Partner   

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 55

Agenda Item 8



4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The purpose of the report is to enable the monitoring of progress against the 
Council’s corporate priorities. As such this report has linkages to each of the 
Council’s Corporate Plan aims.   

5. Options

5.1 Members are asked to consider the proposed targets and to make 
amendments if they consider that they are necessary. 

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
None

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Diversity and Equality Policies

6.4 Financial Considerations
Effective Performance Management contributes to the Council’s 
financial objectives 

6.5 Legal
None

6.6 Sustainability
None

6.7 Internal and External Consultation
Corporate and Operational Managers have proposed the targets 
within this report 

6.8 Risk Assessment
A robust Performance Framework is a critical tool in controlling and 
mitigating risks.     

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) and Chief Finance Officer

Background Papers Location Contact details

Performance Framework 2018/19
Annual Report 2017/18

Available on request V Higgins, Ext 4057 

Page 56



7. Background and Introduction 

7.1 The Council’s 4-year Corporate Plan (2015-2019) articulates the aims, 
objectives and priority actions, which the Council is working to achieve over 
this period. The new Plan required a new Performance Framework that could 
measure its delivery and also aid effective scrutiny through more focused and 
balanced reporting; celebrating success and promoting improvement.  

7.2 The 2016/17 Performance Framework was built around the Council’s key 
objectives whilst also ensuring that the three pillars of value for money 
(efficiency, economy and effectiveness) remained central.     

7.3 The Framework is made up monthly, quarterly and annual measures and the 
Council reports by exception on all monthly and quarterly measures but has 
moved away from a ‘dashboard’ approach to one which reflects the whole 
Framework. The annual contextual measures are reported in the new Annual 
Report, which also provides an overview of the Council’s progress in 
delivering its Corporate Plan and the results of value for money 
benchmarking.

8. Performance Framework 2018/19

8.1 Targets covering a 3-year period are owned and managed by Service Leads 
across the authority, and are communicated to teams through service plans 
and individual performance objectives via the PEP process. Managers have 
been asked to review and refresh these targets for the period 2018/19 to 
2020/21 based upon current performance levels and national benchmarks, 
where available.

8.2 In some cases Managers have proposed the removal, addition or amendment 
of performance measures. Such instances have been highlighted within the 
Appendices to this report and have been challenged by Alliance Management 
Team as appropriate.

9. Annual Report 2017/18

9.1 The purpose of an Annual Report is to look back and take stock of the 
progress and achievements made against the Council’s stated objectives and 
to use this intelligence to understand what still needs to be done and what 
new challenges lie ahead. 

9.2 The Annual Report does this by:

 looking at performance against our targets
 analysing performance (and cost) against national comparisons
 presenting information on the local context in which the Council operate; 

such as, health profiles, deprivation levels, economic indicators, and 
access to housing 

Page 57



 outlining the financial challenges facing the authority over the course of its 
Medium Term Financial Plan. 

9.3 The headline findings from this year’s Annual Report have been used to 
influence the targets set for 2018/19 and the refreshed Corporate Plan and 
include the following:

Benchmarking Issues… Being addressed through…
Housing Benefits are the 6th fastest in the 
region and costs have fallen by 35% to 
become the 5th lowest out of 19 councils. 

Channel shift project and further 
benchmarking activity by the 
service

Staffs Moorlands enjoys relatively low crime 
levels (the second lowest in the comparator 
group) but the Council’s spend on CCTV is 
7th highest in the West Midlands 
comparison group

CCTV project

Spend on sport and recreation facilities is 
the 9th highest in the region but inactivity 
levels stand at almost 27%.  

Sport and Physical Activity 
Strategy implementation (including 
a review of leisure centre 
provision in preparation for the 
expiry of the current contract)  

Low levels of Ombudsman complaints New system for recording and 
reporting on complaints is now in 
place for 2018/19

Business formation rate was the lowest in 
the County at 9.26%. Long term 
unemployment is amongst the lowest 20% 
of councils nationally. 

Adoption of Local Plan to facilitate 
business growth and appropriate 
development 

Staffs Moorlands is now the 7th highest 
spender regionally for Development Control 
(down from 3rd highest) and performance 
rankings for major applications are 4th 
fastest.  

Further benchmarking activity by 
service area to understand cost 
differences

The Council is a high performing but also 
high cost council across the West Midlands 
region for waste and recycling. We have the 
lowest residual waste rates in the region 
and the second highest recycling rate but 
also the second highest waste collection 
costs. Nationally our waste collection costs 
are amongst the top 20% of councils.  

New service delivery model in 
partnership with ANSA Ltd and 
Cheshire East

The Council’s spend on public 
conveniences is the 2nd highest of our 
comparison group at £276k. 

Implementation of the Asset 
Management Plan, including a 
review of public estate

 
10. Timeframe for refreshing the Corporate Plan 2018-2019

10.1 The Annual Report, as well as looking at performance metrics and 
comparative cost measures, also takes stock of the progress the Council has 

Page 58



made in terms of delivering against its priority actions. These actions were 
laid out within the Corporate Plan under each of our four aims as specific 
objectives.

10.2 The Annual Report will provide an opportunity to reflect on the progress 
made during the first three years of the Plan and to reiterate the Council’s 
commitment to the remaining objectives as well as adding any new areas of 
priority that have emerged since the Plan was first developed.

10.3 The timeframe for approval and publication of the revised Corporate Plan is 
as follows:

 June 6th – Resources Panel – scrutiny of 2018/19 Performance Framework 
including the 2017/18 Annual Report and refreshed Corporate Plan 2018-
2019

 June 19th – Cabinet – approval of 2018/19 Performance Framework including 
the 2017/18 Annual Report and refreshed Corporate Plan 2018-2019

 July 19th – Council – adoption of Corporate Plan 2018-2019
 July 20th onwards - Internal communication of revised Corporate Plan.  

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Staffordshire Moorlands: Annual Report    

2017-2018  

P
age 61



Contents Page 

Chapter 1: Profile of the District – Life in Staffs Moorlands: contextual information on housing provision, 

employment and skills, health issues and levels of crime 

Chapter 2: Financial Context – The financial challenges and opportunities facing local government and how 

the Council is addressing them 

Chapter 3: Our Vision – The key priorities for the Council for 2015 to 2019 

Chapter 4: Demonstrating Value for Money – Progress against our corporate priorities and how we 

perform compared to other councils  

Chapter 5: Our Priorities 2018-2019 - The Council’s roadmap for the next twelve months    

Appendices 

Appendix A: Aim 1 Analysis of comparative performance and costs 

Appendix B: Aim 2 Analysis of comparative performance and costs 

Appendix C: Aim 3 Analysis of comparative performance and costs 

Appendix D: Aim 4 Analysis of comparative performance and costs 

 

P
age 62



Chapter 1: Profile of the District 

The District of Staffordshire Moorlands covers an area of 57,600 hectares, of 

which 32.16% is classed as rural, and serves a resident population of 97,106 - 

50.79% of which are female. There are 43,974 domestic households on the 

Council Tax valuation list.    

Who lives in the Staffordshire Moorlands?  

 Staffs Moorlands has an aging population, having seen a 55% increase in 

the proportion of residents aged 65 plus from 1991-2016. Over 24% of 

the local population now fall within this age group but the majority (30%) 

of Staffs Moorlands residents are aged between 45 and 64.   

 Only 2.52% of the local population is non-white, compared to 6.44% in 

Staffordshire and 20.25% nationally. Mixed or multiple ethnic groups 

make up the second largest proportion of the local population at 0.62%.  

 One person households make up the largest group in the District at over 

28% although this is in line with national data.  

 Married couples without children are higher than the national average at 

16% 

 27.52% of the population are educated to degree level or higher, which ranks in the lowest 20% of councils nationally. However, only 

7% have no qualifications, which is slightly better than the national average.    

  

What’s it like to live in the Staffordshire Moorlands? 
 
Crime – Figures show that Staffs Moorlands is amongst the lowest 40% of councils nationally for levels of crime. Since 2009 there has been a 

12% decrease in offences, down to 476.3 per 10,000 population.  
 

Deprivation – Staffs Moorlands is ranked in the bottom 40% of districts nationally for its deprivation score.   

 

   

P
age 63



Health – Average life expectancy is lower than the national average for women at 82.81 years but higher than the national average for men 

at 80.14years.   
 

 44.15% of the population assess themselves as having ‘very good health’, compared to 47.17% nationally. Conversely, 1.37% have ‘very 
bad health’, which again is worse than the national average.  

 Infant mortality in Staffs Moorlands is very high at 5.3 deaths per 1,000 births, compared to 3.89 nationally.   

 Obesity levels stand at 64.86%, lower than the national median 

 At 14.08% the proportion of the adult population who smoke is estimated to be in the bottom 40% of districts nationally.   
 
 

Housing – Staffs Moorlands is ranked in the top 20% of districts nationally in terms of housing affordability. The average house price in the 

area was £174,998, by comparison the Staffordshire figure was £198,209 and the national average was £287,577. 

 

 79.69% of households in Staffs Moorlands are owner occupied, which is higher than the County and national average 

 8.86% of households live in social rented accommodation putting the area in the lowest 20% of areas nationally 

 

Employment – 63.99% of the Staffs Moorlands resident working age population are in employment, which is higher than the Staffordshire 

and national figures.   

 

 
 The proportion of the working age population who are long-term unemployed is 1.05%, which places Staffs Moorlands amongst the 

lowest 20% of councils nationally.   

 Staffs Moorlands has a very high proportion of residents with elementary; process, plant and machinery; and associate professional 
occupations but very low levels of skilled trades and customer service / sales occupations.  

 
 

The following pages provide further and supporting analysis from Grant Thornton’s Place Analytics Tool on some key contextual data that 

helps the Council understand the issues facing our local population and to plan services accordingly.  

 

 

P
age 64



P
age 65



P
age 66



P
age 67



 
 

P
age 68



Chapter 2: Our Financial Context 

The District continues to face significant financial challenges as a consequence of austerity measures along with cost 

pressures within services and greater volatility in financing streams.  The shift in Local Authority financing is increasing the 

focus on locally generated income streams and reducing the reliance on core Central Government funding.  This increases 

the control and influence the Council has over income generated within the District but has also made it vulnerable to 

fluctuations within the local economy, hence increasing financial risk. The table below compares Council spend per capita against all District 

Councils and shows that Staffs Moorlands has the 45th lowest spend out of 201 councils.  

 

Staffordshire Moorlands 

2016/2017  

(£000s) Unit 

Unit 

Cost 

(£) 

Unit Cost 

Score 

TOTAL SERVICE NET EXPENDITURE (RO Bal) / Population 9,914 98,069 101.09 Low 

TOTAL HOUSING SERVICES (GFRA ONLY) (RO Bal) / Population 791 98,069 8.07 Low 

TOTAL CULTURAL & RELATED SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 2,049 98,069 20.89 Average 

TOTAL ENVIRONMENTAL & REGULATORY SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 3,688 98,069 37.61 Average 

TOTAL PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 966 98,069 9.85 Low 

TOTAL CENTRAL SERVICES (RO Bal) / Population 2,550 98,069 26 Low 

 

 

P
age 69



Financial challenges and opportunities 

Set out below are some of the more significant developments which have a potential impact on the financial position of the Authority.  

 

Changes to Local Government Finance 

In November 2015, the Chancellor’s Autumn Statement set out the strategic direction for public expenditure, which outlined a number of 

changes to local government financing which have had a significant impact of the Council’s future financial position.   

Revenue Support Grant - The Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government presented the Local Government finance settlement 

2016/17 to the House of Commons on 17th December 2015. This was made in the context of the Chancellor’s Autumn Statement / Spending 

Review and included a four year settlement offer to Authorities for Revenue Support Grant (the Local Government core grant) which 

confirmed the phasing out of the grant by 2020.  The Council accepted this and the financial impact has been included in the Council’s MTFP.    

Business Rates – It has previously been announced by Government that by 2020, authorities will retain 100% of Business Rate growth. As part 

of the current Business Rates Retention system, authorities are able to retain a proportion of any growth in business rates over and above a 

centrally established baseline. The Council’s proportion is further increased by participation in the Staffordshire Business Rates pool, which 

removes the growth levy payable to Government.   

Following invitation from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, Staffordshire Authorities made an application to 

become a pilot area for 100% Business Rates Retention. The application was unsuccessful for 2018/19, but indications are that applications will 

be sought again by DCLG for 2019/20 pilots and the authority will consider at the appropriate time whether or not to pursue this.   

Uncertainty remains around how the new system will be phased in and in what form – the approved pilots being trialled around the Country 

will support the Government in forming the final model. Therefore, no financial assumptions based on the new system have been included 

with the Council’s financial plan at this stage - these will be fed into the plans once we have more certainty around how the system will 

operate.   

During 2016, a national revaluation of business rates premises took place and the new list of rateable values has been introduced from 1st 

April 2017. Central Government have adjusted the tariff applied to the Council’s business rates income to take account of this change. The 

change in this tariff is offset by the net change in income following the introduction of the revised rateable values. 

P
age 70



As a result of the revaluation, the Government extended some existing reliefs and introduced a number of new Business Rate Reliefs to 

support businesses who have suffered an increase in rates. To compensate for the loss of business rates income resulting from the reliefs, 

funding has to date been made available to Councils under Section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003. 

Council Tax - The Council has the capacity to vary Council Tax levels, following the abolition of capping. However the Council’s ability to 

increase Council Tax by more than a certain percentage is subject to referendum. The threshold was 1.99% - therefore a Council Tax increase 

of 1.9% was applied by the Council for 2017/18. This threshold was increased to 2.99% in the recent finance settlement in order to better 

reflect CPI (to be applied from 1st April 2018) – the Council has increased its share of Council Tax by 2.9% in 2018/19. 

 

New Homes Bonus - Proposals were presented to amend the current New Homes Bonus settlement which is currently a significant source of 

income to the Authority. A consultation was then undertaken, with the outcome released in December 2016. The main changes to the scheme 

which came into effect from 1st April 2017 were incorporated into the 2017/18 budget and 4 year MTFP, these include:- 

 The reduction in the number of years for which the Bonus is paid from the current 6 years to 5 years in 2017/18; to be followed by a 

further reduction to 4 years in 2018/19;  

 The removal of New Homes Bonus paid on development below a 0.4% baseline (of the overall tax base)  
 

Further changes, proposed in the consultation, have been put on hold to be considered for future implementation. These include: 

 Withholding the Bonus from areas where an authority does not have a Local Plan in place; and 

 Abating the Bonus in circumstances where planning permission for a new development has only 

been granted on appeal. 

 

The 2018 settlement announcement confirmed these measures would not be implemented in 2018/19. 

Social Housing - The Government announced in July 2015 far reaching legislative and financial changes 

for the social housing sector. One of the most significant announcements being the reduction in social 

housing rents by 1% per annum from April 2016 for 4 years. The Government announced in October 2017 

that after the four year 1% rent reduction ends in 2019/20, authorities will then be allowed to increase 

rents from 2020/21 by CPI +1%. 

 

P
age 71



This has impacted on the Ascent business plan (the joint venture company established by the Council and Your Housing Group Limited) to 

deliver affordable housing across the District. Consequently, forecast revenue receipts have been revised to account for the reduction in rental 

income and as a result a number of strategic options are now being considered for the future of Ascent.   

Impact of Brexit 

On the 23rd June 2016, the United Kingdom voted to leave the European Union as a result of the referendum. Subsequently, Prime Minister 

Theresa May activated the official mechanism that made this a reality – Article 50 of the Lisbon Treaty – on 29th March 2017, which then 

allows two years to negotiate withdrawal and reach agreement before the UK officially leaves the EU by 29th March 2019.   

The financial consequences of ‘Brexit’ on the Council remain uncertain at this stage. It will have implications on specific project funding bids 

which have in the past been submitted to European established bodies, it is unclear what/if any mechanism will replace this.      

Dependent on the economic impact of an EU exit, this could potentially impact on the valuation of our assets and liabilities; for example, the 

Council’s property portfolio and pension liability. Discussions with Valuers suggest it is extremely difficult to assess any implications at this 

stage.   

Additionally, the EU exit may influence investment and borrowing rates. The overall wider impact and any specific changes to Local 

Government finance will be further assessed within the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan.   

A general election was called and took place on 8th June 2017 providing the opportunity for the general public to vote in a Government to 

undertake Brexit negotiations. The results of which meant that the Conservatives lost their majority after losing seats to opposition parties 

across the Country. The Conservatives subsequently made an agreement with Northern Ireland’s DUP (Democratic Unionist Party) forming a 

minority Government.   

Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme  

2017-18 was the first year of the Council’s new 4 year Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme, which targets £3.1m in financial savings by 

31st March 2021 to offset the 4 year forecast budget shortfall and ensure the Council is financially stable. The new Efficiency and 

Rationalisation Strategy was developed and presented as part of the Medium Term Financial Plan to full Council in February 2017. 

The Efficiency Programme is focused on five areas:- 

 

P
age 72



 Major Procurements - There is the opportunity to focus attention on a number of large service functions which are currently provided by 

an external contractor / supplier. A number of significant contracts are coming to an end. This will also allow a fundamental review of 

these services with proper consideration of the current financial constraints. The contract commitments have sometimes restricted the 

opportunity to align services across the Alliance with High Peak. The individual projects will focus on Waste Collection & Environmental 

Services, Leisure Management and Facilities Management. 
 

 Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of rationalising the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in 

order to allow for the necessary capital investment. 
 

 Growth – development of a clear focus on housing and economic growth based upon the established Local Plan.  
 

 Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing sources on income and a drive towards identifying new sources of 

income. 
 

 Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority areas of spend e.g. management arrangements, channel shift, 

non-statutory services.  

 

During 2017/18, the efficiency target of £661,000 has been achieved. The savings achieved relate to management review savings, additional income 

from car parking and recycling, channel shift project savings, agency/vacancy reviews within Operational Services and a reduction in printing and 

postage costs. Additionally, a number of vacant staff posts have been reviewed (in line with the service review process and as a result of other 

efficiency projects) which have contributed to the overall efficiency programme.   

 

   

 

 

P
age 73



Chapter 3: Our Vision 

Staffordshire Moorlands’ 4-year Corporate Plan sets out the Council’s Vision for 2015 to 2019 – achieving excellence in the delivery of high 

quality services that meet the needs and aspirations of our communities – and is underpinned by four aims:  

 Aim One: To help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and work – measured through 

an increased supply of quality affordable housing, improved health, and improved community safety. Our key 
priorities are: 
 
 An effective relationship with strategic partners 

 
 Develop a positive relationship with communities 

 
 Increased supply of good quality affordable homes 

 
 Effective support of community safety arrangements including CCTV 

 
 Provision of sports facilities and leisure opportunities focused upon improving health 

 

In order to meet these priorities we will… 

 Develop a strategy for further development of affordable and specialist housing 

 Develop and agree a new empty properties strategy 

 Undertake detailed process benchmarking with high performing / low cost councils with a view to identifying value for money improvements around 

Housing Benefit processing 

 Undertake a review of the current CCTV system to look at its cost-effectiveness in preparation for the expiry of the maintenance contract in early 2018 

 Develop a scheme that supports the upgrading of security in vulnerable people’s homes 

 Support the Community Safety Partnership with improved provision of outreach workers for dealing with domestic violence 

 Work with Staffordshire County Council and other partners to ensure an effective partnership with central government 

 Help to ensure, through the scrutiny work programme, that partner service provision, particularly health provision for the elderly, is effective 

 Implement the Council’s new sport and physical activity strategy and carry out research into nil cost facility provision being achieved by other councils; 

in order to achieve improved health and value for money outcomes for the Staffs Moorlands     

 

P
age 74



 

 Aim Two: To meet financial challenges and provide value for money – measured through a balanced 

and sustainable medium term financial position, value for money services and high levels of resident and 
customer satisfaction. Our key priorities are: 

 

 Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money 

 Ensure our services are easily available to all our residents in the appropriate channels and provided “right first time” 

 A high performing and well motivated workforce 

 More effective use of Council assets 

 

In order to meet these priorities we will… 

 Deliver the Channel Shift Programme 

 Benchmark and review the Council’s approach to customer complaints as part of the introduction of a new automated management 

system for complaint handling and reporting 

 Develop and implement a plan to identify new and innovative ways of generating income 

 Refresh and implement the Asset Management Plan, including a review of public estate, and ensure adequate facilities management 

arrangements are in place 

 

 

 

 

P
age 75



 

 Aim Three: To help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns and villages – measured 

through sustainable towns and rural communities and increased economic growth. Our key priorities are:  
 
 

 Encouraging business start-ups and enterprises 

 

 Flourishing town centres that support the local economy 

 

 Encourage and develop tourism 

 

 High quality development and building control with an “open for business approach” 

In order to meet these priorities we will… 

 Undertake detailed process benchmarking with high performing / low cost councils with a view to identifying value for money 
improvements for planning application processing 

 Implement the town deal in Biddulph in partnership with Biddulph Town Council 
 Support the development of Cornhill and improved rail links 
 Develop and implement plans to extend the public market operations in Leek and Cheadle 
 Support the development of London Mill as part of a wider redevelopment scheme 
 Implement the Growth Fund initiative to support small businesses 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 76



 

 Aim Four: To protect and improve the environment – measured through high recycling rates, quality parks and open spaces, 

and clean streets. Our key priorities are:  
 

 Effective recycling and waste management 
 

 Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health 
 

 Promote environmentally sustainable policies and practices 
 

 Provision of quality parks and open spaces 
  

 Car parking arrangements that meet the needs of residents, businesses and visitors 
 

In order to meet these priorities we will… 

 Work with ANSA and Cheshire East to launch Alliance Environmental Services Ltd, our new joint venture company, to deliver waste, 
streets and grounds maintenance services on behalf of the Council in order to achieve improved performance and value for money 
outcomes.  

 Establish a developer open space contributions plan. 
 Identify and implement an approach to reduce the cost of country parks 
 Develop a plan to improve Brough Park with Heritage Lottery Fund support 
 Reduce the Council’s energy consumption and associated costs (through the Asset Management Plan) 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 

P
age 77



Chapter 4: Demonstrating value for money - our performance and how we compare 

At the close of 2017/18 the Council had achieved 76% of its key performance indicator targets for the year (a 10% improvement on the 

previous year) and had maintained or improved performance levels in 75% of these measures.  

 

       

  

The service areas which fell short of target include housing benefits new claims, business unit occupancy, planning satisfaction and appeals, 

town centre vacancy rates, missed bins and fly-tipping incidents. 

For those measures that fell below the target set for the year we have developed actions for improvement, where feasible, as part of our 

performance reporting to senior managers and members. 

 

 

 

 

2017/18 Targets 

Target Met 

Target Not Met 

N/A 

64% 

25% 

11% 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

90% 

100% 

Better Weaker No Change 

Trends 2017-18 

P
age 78



Aim 1: A safer and healthier environment 

Delivering on our housing targets: 
- Benefits processing times for new claims 

 Benefits processing times for changes of circumstance 

 Households in temporary accommodation 

 Homelessness prevention 

 Disabled adaptation grant processing and satisfaction with works 

 Housing Benefits processing – accuracy rates  

 

2016/17 benchmarking evidences that within the West Midlands region, Staffs Moorlands’ performance in determining new Housing Benefit 

claims is still the 6th fastest (out of 19 councils), despite longer processing times. The Council’s costs are now the 5th lowest in the region, 

having reduced by 35% over the period in question. The correlation charts in Appendix A detail the regional performances and identify those 

councils with lower costs. The number of households in temporary accommodation has increased from 5 to 12 from 2009 to 2016 but remains 

relatively low.  

 
Contextual Measures:  

 33 affordable homes came on line in 2016/17 (the 2017/18 figure won’t be available until the end of June 2018) 

 300 homes stood empty for more than two years 

 9% (57) of housing register applicants in priority need have been waiting in excess of 6 months 

 3 landlords signed up to the Landlord Accreditation Scheme (an increase of one on the previous year)   

 

Delivering on community safety: 
Benchmarking confirms that the Staffs Moorlands area enjoys relatively low crime levels (the second lowest in the comparator group) but the 

Council’s spend on CCTV is 7th highest in the West Midlands comparison group. A CCTV review project is already underway   

 

Contextual Measures:  

 We used the crime and policing powers to issue 30 warning letters, 1 Public Space Protection Order, 4 Criminal Behaviour Orders, 3 

Community Protection Notices, 4 Fixed Penalty Notices and 1 Injunction 

 98.8% of residents feel safe in their local area during the day and 88.5% after dark  

P
age 79



Delivering on our leisure targets: 
 £75,000 in external funding awarded to help support the Sport and Physical Activity Strategy 

 
2016/17 benchmarking again evidences that relative spend by Staffs Moorlands on the provision of leisure facilities is in line with the national 

average. The Council’s spend on sport and recreation facilities is ranked 9th highest in the region at £643,000. As the Council’s contract with its 

leisure partners approaches its expiry, it remains an opportune time to look at the arrangements in place at other authorities where 

comparisons reveal similar income levels but much lower levels of expenditure. The wider health outcomes within the Staffs Moorlands also 

need to be considered as the Council implements its sport and physical activity strategy.    

 

Contextual Measures:  

 26.8% of the local population are ‘inactive’  

 17.2% of the local population volunteer in sports clubs 

 

Delivering on the Council’s Corporate Plan Priorities 
 

The following section highlights the progress made during 2017/18 against the Corporate Plan Priority Actions under Aim One. 

Priority Action Status Commentary – March 
Help to ensure, through the scrutiny work programme, that 
partner service provision, particularly health provision for 
the elderly, is effective 

 Health Visiting Services - Head of Child Health & Well-Being at 
SCC was scheduled to attend the Health Panel on 18th October 
2017. The meeting was cancelled. Meeting of 28/02/18 was 
further delayed due to the weather and is in the process of 
being rearranged. 
West Midlands Ambulance Service - Mark Doherty was due to 
provide an annual update to the Health Panel on the 18th 
October 2017. The meeting was cancelled and is in the process 
of being re-arranged. 
Royal Stoke University Hospital- Annual Update is now due and 
an invitation will be sent 
Staffordshire & Stoke on Trent Partnership NHS Trust & North 
Staffordshire Combined Health Care NHS Trust-The County 
Council have advised that the Chief Executive of the Royal Stoke 

P
age 80



Priority Action Status Commentary – March 
Hospital has recently attended the County Council and under the 
Code of Working between the District and County council, unless 
there are any specific queries relating to the Moorlands, then 
the County Council will lead on scrutiny. 
Health watch Staffordshire - Annual Update due beginning of 
2018 to include Care/Nursing Homes and Moorlands Hospital.  

Undertake detailed process benchmarking with high 
performing / low cost councils with a view to identifying 
value for money improvements for Housing Benefit 
processing  

 Corporate Plan Priorities and Annual report findings shared with 
senior managers. This has kick started the benchmarking 
activities and the Information Team have provided background 
data packs to facilitate process benchmarking by Managers in 
conjunction with their Finance Business Partners. Service is a 
member of a county-wide managers’ forum looking at benefits 
performance and measures. Post service review our costs have 
greatly reduced and when the latest figures are available will be 
completing site visits to partners. 
 

Implement the Council’s new sport and physical activity 
strategy and carry out research into nil cost facility provision 
being achieved by other councils; in order to achieve 
improved health and value for money outcomes     

 The appointed consultants have submitted the final reports and 
draft recommendations for consideration. Discussions with key 
members from both authorities taking place over the coming 
months to consider the conclusions and recommendations 
within the reports. Agreement in principle with members for 
way forward. 
 

Undertake a review of the current CCTV system to look at its 
cost-effectiveness in preparation for the expiry of the 
maintenance contract in early 2018 

 Revised scrutiny reports are being prepared for consideration by 
Councillors. These will hopefully go through the next committee 
cycle. In the meantime, the current monitoring and maintenance 
contracts have been extended for a further 6 months.  

Develop a strategy for further development of affordable 
and specialist housing 

 Finance to obtain Your Housing update on Business Plan review 
in preparation for October £7m maturity 
 

Develop and agree a new empty properties strategy  Action Completed.  
Strategy approved  

Develop a scheme that supports the upgrading of security in  Action Completed. 

P
age 81



Priority Action Status Commentary – March 
vulnerable people’s homes The Safe and Sound Service has been launched with the aim of 

reducing victimisation by offering additional security to those 
affected by crime or living in fear of crime. The service aims to 
help those in most need by fitting additional security measures 
within the home. The Partnership has funded a handyman 
employed by Moorlands Housing to fit a range of security 
features such as lockable window handles, padlocks, mortice 
latches, door chain etc. The scheme is offered free of charge to 
those in most need and who meet at least one of eligibility 
criteria. There is a low level of demand for the service, which 
reflects the low crime levels in the area. However, it has a huge 
impact on those that have been affected by crime or live in fear 
of crime as simple security precautions offer the reassurance 
required to live a better quality of life without the fear of a 
repeat crime. Over 30 properties have benefited from this 
service making them more secure and less vulnerable and thus 
improving quality of life.  

Support the Community Safety Partnership with improved 
provision of outreach workers for dealing with domestic 
violence 

 Action Completed. 
Domestic Violence Police Link Worker Project - to ensure 
support and information is targeted and relevant to the specific 
needs of the victim to help reduce risk to the victim. The role 
seeks to make sure victims are safe and that further violence is 
significantly prevented from happening by signposting the 
relevant support services as quickly as possible. Closer working 
with the Staffordshire Moorlands Police Vulnerability Team 
means that packs containing information about ARCH services 
are now given to the victims at the point the police turn up. 
During the period 2015-16 a total of 231 referrals have been 
received. A total of 81 joint visits were made and 7 lone visits by 
the DV Police Link Worker. A total of 174 victims were 
successfully contacted by telephone. 
A total of 113 referrals have been made to ARCH services 
including: refuge, floating support, IDVA (Independent Domestic 
Violence Advisor), Male IDVA, Freedom Programme. Referrals to 

P
age 82



Priority Action Status Commentary – March 
other agencies include, Mind counselling service, housing, FARS, 
social care, Rethink, One Recovery.  A total of 178 information 
packs were sent out/handed out.  During this period the Police 
Link Worker (PLW) received 226 referrals, of which 51 were 
passed onto the IDVA through the MARAC process.  19 referrals 
were made to Floating Support, 4 children were referred to 
ARCH Children and Young People’s Service.  3 were found refuge 
accommodation, 6 referrals were made for the Freedom 
programme and 10 women attended a solicitor appointment at 
the Sunrise Centre. A total of 65 visits were made, of these 49 
were joint visits and 16 were undertaken just by the Police Link 
Worker.  

Work with Staffordshire County Council and other partners 
to ensure an effective partnership with central government 

 Links to strategic partnerships project above 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 83



Aim 2: Meeting financial challenges and providing value for money 

Delivering on our effective use of resources targets: 
 Council tax and business rates collection 

 Media releases take up and twitter followers 

 Internal audit recommendations implemented on time 

 Sundry debt reduction 

 Invoices paid on time 

 Efficiency savings met (Q3) 

 Procurement activity 

- Budget variance (Q3) 

 

2016/17 benchmarking again reveals that Staffs Moorlands has the 4th highest Council Tax collection rate in the region (41st nationally) and is 

relatively low cost (28th lowest out of 201 councils). Performance in collecting Business Rates is also amongst the top 40% of councils nationally 

and has improved in its ranking by 15 places to 79th highest of 201 councils. The limited benchmarking material on complaints levels indicates 

that we have low levels of ombudsman complaints but the picture is less clear for general complaints. A new system for managing and 

recording complaints went live in April 2018 and should provide improved reporting in order to better understand customer issues.               

 

Delivering on our customer access and right first time targets: 
- Website assessment through Socitm’s Better Connected survey 

 Complaints responded to within 10 days 

 Repeat complaints 

 Channel shift contacts (phone, face to face and web) 

 FOI requests dealt with on time 

 

Contextual Measures:  

 10.3% of FOI requests were diverted to the Council’s website / publication scheme 

 193 complaints were received during 2017/18, a 21% reduction on the previous year 

 

Delivering on our high performing and well motivated workforce targets: 

P
age 84



 Sickness absence per FTE 

 Workplace accidents 

- Reportable / lost time workplace accidents 

- Appraisals completed 

 

Most appraisals have now been completed and for many teams are in Year 2 of the process. Some slippage has occurred in a small number of 

teams. The Council was successful in being accredited with the prestigious RoSpa Gold Award in recognition of our health and safety at work 

practices and our overall accident levels decreased last year.       

 

Contextual Measures:  

 We received 102 compliments last  year 

 Staff turnover stood at 9.3% 

 

Delivering on our effective use of assets targets:   
- Council-owned business units that are occupied 

 IT network and system availability  

 

Delivering on the Council’s Corporate Plan Priorities  
The following section highlights the progress made during 2017/18 against the Corporate Plan Priority Actions under Aim Two. 

Priority Action Status Commentary - March 
Deliver the Channel Shift Programme 
 

 Digital Portal Launched July 2017 and CRM now switched off. Benefit claims are 
now between 99.5 % and 100% online for both authorities and are integrated into 
the Civica back office system. Changes in Circumstances are 100% online. All 
Council tax discounts and exemptions are available online. Approx. 98% of all other 
benefit forms are available online. Benefits /Savings analysis from programme 
being evaluated. Phase Two of the Digital Portal project is on track. Findings of the 
CGI review to be included. Environmental reporting app being explored.  
 

Benchmark and review the Council’s 
approach to customer complaints as part 
of the introduction of a new automated 

 Action Completed.  
Complaints system configuration is complete and all enhancements/improvements 
are now in place. Final testing and trials successfully completed. Manager training 

P
age 85



management system for complaint 
handling and reporting 

schedule completed.  
System live from 01/04/18 across both authorities. 

Develop and implement a plan to identify 
new and innovative ways of generating 
income 
 

 All income generation challenge meetings have been completed, a target has been 
included as part of the new efficiency and rationalisation strategy 2017/18 – 20/21. 
Various streams: 
Commercial properties- Mandates to be produced, assessment taking place , 
working through project plan. Industrial units will be ready for re-letting following 
procurement process. 
Fees and charges- Car Parking income and all inflationary increases approved at Full 
Council.  
Advertising/Sponsorship - Project put back by 8 weeks. Policy to be produced and 
any political implications considered.  
Affordable housing - Chase Your Housing for update on Business Plan review and 
October Maturity of £7m 
Empty Homes- Project manager appointed, working group met in Jan to consider 
strategy action plan progress. 

Refresh and implement the Asset 
Management Plan, including a review of 
public estate, and ensure adequate 
facilities management arrangements are 
in place 

 Working group established and new approach to be agreed. The improvement 
programme will be produced prior to the MTFP in Feb 18. 
 
The Facilities Management contract should be in place by October 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 86



Aim 3: To support economic development and regeneration 

Delivering on our encouraging business start-ups objective: 

Benchmarking reveals that our business formation rate was the lowest in the County at 9.26% in 2016 but had improved from 

7.58% in 2010. Employment rates are above the national average and long term unemployment at 1.05% puts Staffs Moorlands 

amongst the lowest 20% of councils nationally.     

Contextual Measures:  

 4165 enterprises are operating within the Staffs Moorlands, an increase of 45 on the previous year 

 97 businesses were supported through the Growth Fund 

  

Delivering on our flourishing town centres targets: 

- The district had an average town centre vacancy rate of 11.5% - Leek 7.9%, Cheadle 14.3%, Biddulph 18.2% 

 

New housing in Cheadle and Biddulph as part of the Local Plan delivery will support increased footfall and therefore increased shop occupancy 

levels. 

 

Delivering on our promoting tourism objective: 
Visitors to the Staffs Moorlands added £261m of spend to the local economy according to the latest research reports and local business 

benefited from over 1.5m overnight stays. The Council’s spend on Tourism is amongst the top 20% of councils nationally at £260,000. 

 

Delivering on our high quality development and building control targets:  
- Planning appeals successfully defended 

 Major, minor and other planning applications determined in time 

 Planning applications with pre-app enquiries 

- Satisfaction with the planning application process 

 

P
age 87



2016/17 benchmarking results across the West Midlands evidences that for the period in question the Council achieved above average 

performance rates for major planning, minor and other application processing but at above average costs (7th highest of 19 councils, an 

improvement from 3rd highest). Our costs are amongst the middle 20% of councils nationally. Performance has improved and costs have 

reduced but there are examples of other councils achieving better determination rates at lower costs and warrant some further investigation 

by the service area in order to understand the reasons for the differences. 

 

Contextual Measures:  

 £850 in costs were awarded against the Council last year for planning appeals 

 238 customers attended the new Planning Surgeries 

 68% of planning enforcement cases were resolved in 13 weeks 

 100% of priority 1 planning enforcement cases were visited within 24hours 

         

Delivering on the Council’s Corporate Plan Priorities 
 

The following section highlights the progress made during 2017/18 against the Corporate Plan Priority Actions under Aim Three. 

Priority Action Status Commentary – March 
Undertake detailed process benchmarking 
with high performing / low cost councils 
with a view to identifying value for money 
improvements for Planning application 
processing 

 In Staffs Moorlands our Development Control RO costs have reduced from £598k to 
£369k which places the Council 7th highest out of 19 councils regionally. 
Performance in determining planning applications is ranked 4th for majors, 5th for 
minors and 8th fastest for other applications across the region. 

Implement the town deal in Biddulph in 
partnership with Biddulph Town Council 

 A report was approved by the Cabinet in April for an accelerated housing delivery 
programme in Staffordshire Moorlands. The report sought approval for preparing 
two masterplans in Biddulph. One is for the sites allocated at Wharf Road for 
residential-led mixed use development and the other is for sites allocated at 
Tunstall Road for employment-led mixed use development. Town council have 
commissioned consultants for the mill triangle masterplan with support from 
regeneration team. Consultation with SCC is on-going. 
 

 Support the development of Cornhill and 
improved rail links 

 Discussions ongoing with all stakeholders and neighbouring land owners regarding 
delivery of the site. 
 

P
age 88



Priority Action Status Commentary – March 
Develop and implement plans to extend 
the public market operations in Leek and 
Cheadle 

 Authorisation has been given to proceed with the procurement of work to refurbish 
the indoor markets and the MTFP has allocated a budget provision of £300k for the 
project. The contractor and design team will put together a detailed project plan 
which will be communicated on receipt. The wider market improvement strategy 
has been agreed by the portfolio owner and is moving forward satisfactorily. 
The market on Greyhound Walk in Cheadle was successfully launched in November, 
this is going well, and as of Friday 23rd March, the footprint has been extended 
onto the car park to accommodate a further 4/5 stalls. 

Support the development of London Mill 
as part of a wider redevelopment scheme 

 The site has now been sold. Discussions ongoing with a range of partners as well as 
neighbouring land owners to consider options for comprehensive development of 
wider Mill Quarter site. 

Implement the Growth Fund initiative to 
support small businesses 
 

 Project Closed. Capital allocation removed from Medium Term Financial Plan as no 
external application progressed beyond the Business Case phase. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 89



Aim 4: To protect and improve the environment 

Delivering on our effective recycling and waste management targets: 
 % of household waste recycled 
 Kg of residual household waste 
- Missed Bins 

 
Regional benchmarking for 2016/17 places Staffs Moorlands amongst the highest performing but also highest cost authorities in the West 
Midlands for waste and recycling. We have the lowest residual waste rates in the region and the second highest recycling rates but also the 
second highest waste collection costs. Nationally our waste collection costs are amongst the top 20% of councils.   
 

Delivering on our high quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health targets: 
 Environmental Fixed Penalty Notices issued and enviro-crime enforcements undertaken 
 Street cleanliness 
 Regulatory inspections 
 High risk premises inspections 
 Permitted processes inspections 
 Food premises that are broadly compliant with Food Standards Agency standards 
- Fly-tipping incidents (although a decrease on last year) 
 Community clean-up campaigns  

 
Fly-tipping remains an area of concern because of the environmental impact and the drain on resources but Staffs Moorlands’ rate is the 6th 
lowest in the West Midlands. The Council’s spend on public conveniences remains the second highest across the regional comparator group at 
£276,000. Food hygiene in establishments across the Borough looks healthy with only 15 premises achieving 0-2 stars and 678 premises 
achieving 3 stars or above.  

 

Delivering on our quality parks and open spaces targets: 
 Volunteer hours (1363) 

 
Council spend on parks and open spaces has increased and is now ranked 10th highest in the region at £962,000 but 83rd highest nationally.   
 

Delivering on the Council’s Corporate Plan Priorities 
The following section highlights the progress made during 2017/18 against the Corporate Plan Priority Actions under Aim Four. 

P
age 90



Priority Action  Status Commentary – March 
Work with ANSA and Cheshire East to 
launch Alliance Environmental Services 
Ltd, our new joint venture company, to 
deliver waste, streets and grounds 
maintenance services on behalf of the 
Council in order to achieve improved 
performance and value for money 
outcomes.  

 Alliance Environmental Services has been established and phase 1 (the transfer of 
current Veolia contract to AES) is complete. A plan for phase 2 is being developed. 
Next focus is SMDC waste including associated fleet services for approx. July 2018. 
PID under development to be agreed at next project board Feb 18. Report due Feb 
on next cycle setting our proposals for stage 2. 
 

Establish a developer open space 
contributions plan 
 
 
  

 An Open Space Audit and Playing Pitch Strategy have been completed. In addition 
Operational Services have proposed a revised method for calculating developer 
contributions for play, open space and sport / recreation facilities. This proposed 
method is currently being considered by the Councils' appointed consultants who 
are working with the planning policy team as part of the Local Plan process. Subject 
to approval a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) for developer contributions 
will be worked up in June 2018 using these proposed calculations and methods. 
This will provide guidance for developers on the expected contributions they will 
have to make towards play, open space and sport / recreation facility provision as 
part of local developments. 

Identify and implement an approach to 
reduce the cost of country parks 
 

 Transfer of the Councils’ countryside sites to a specialist provider is still underway. 
A report has been presented to Service Delivery O&S Panel recommending the 
transfer of the management of key Countryside Sites to the Staffordshire Wildlife 
Trust- this was accepted with one caveat regarding Biddulph Grange Country Park. 
Still awaiting decision from Stoke and the matter has been escalated in order to 
progress. 

Develop a plan to improve Brough Park 
with Heritage Lottery Fund support 
 

 A revised submission is now being prepared for the next funding window in Feb 18, 
however HLF are withdrawing Parks for People funding, which may reduce the 
chance. A report went to Scrutiny in the new year. Capital funding update/MTFP 
need to be re-assessed due to reduced lottery funding. 

Reduce the Council’s energy consumption 
and associated costs (through the Asset 
Management Plan) 

 Working group to be established and new approach to be agreed. The 
improvement programme will be produced prior to the MTFP in Feb 18. 

 

P
age 91



Chapter 5: Our Future Priorities 2018-2019 

2018/19 is the final year of the current 4-year Corporate Plan. Most of last year’s actions remain relevant and have been retained alongside a 

small number of new priority areas, including new national legislation.  

Corporate Plan Aim Rolled forward Actions / Projects New Priority Actions 
Aim 1: Increased supply of 
good quality affordable 
homes 

 Develop a strategy for further development of 
affordable and specialist housing 

 Benefits Processing: undertake detailed process 
benchmarking with high performing / low cost 
councils with a view to identifying value for 
money improvements 
 

Ensure the Council is compliant with the requirements 
of the new Homelessness Reduction Act 

Aim 1: Effective support of 
community safety 
arrangements 

Amended: Complete the review of the CCTV system 
and implement the agreed recommendations. 

 

Aim 1: Effective 
relationship with strategic 
partners 

 Work with Staffordshire County Council and 
other partners to ensure an effective 
partnership with central government 

 Help to ensure that partner service provision, 
particularly health provision for the elderly, is 
effective through the Council’s scrutiny work 
programme   

 

Aim 1: Provision of high 
quality leisure facilities 

Implement the Council’s new sport and physical activity 
strategy and carry out research into nil cost facility 
provision being achieved by other councils; in order to 
achieve improved health and value for money 
outcomes for the Staffs Moorlands   

 

Aim 2: Services easily 
available and provided right 
first time 

 

Deliver the Channel Shift Programme 
 
 

Provide advice and support for residents affected by 
the rollout of Universal Credit across Staffs Moorlands 
in 2018 in order to help ensure a smooth transition to 
the new system 

Aim 2: Effective use of 
resources to ensure value 

 Develop and implement a plan to identify new 
and innovative ways of generating income  

Continue to embed good information management 
practices through the ASSURED Framework 

P
age 92



Corporate Plan Aim Rolled forward Actions / Projects New Priority Actions 
for money  Refresh and implement the Asset Management 

Plan, including a review of public estate, and 
ensure adequate facilities management 
arrangements are in place 

Aim 3: Encourage business 
start-ups and enterprise 

 Support the development of the former Churnet 
Works site in Leek 

Aim 3: High quality 
development control 

Planning Application Processing: undertake detailed 
process benchmarking with high performing / low cost 
councils with a view to identifying value for money 
improvements 

Submit the Draft Local Plan to the Planning Inspector 
by the end of June 2018 

Aim 3: Flourishing town 
centres 
 

Implement the town deal in Biddulph in partnership 
with Biddulph Town Council 

 

Support the development of Cornhill and improved rail 
links 

 

Aim 3: Flourishing town 
centres 

 Develop and implement plans to extend the 
public market operations 

 Amended: Develop a Master Plan for the Leek 
Mill Quarter 

 

Aim 4: Effective recycling 
and waste management 

Amended: Successfully deliver Phases 2 and 3 of the 
transfer of services to Alliance Environmental Services 
Ltd, our new joint venture company, to deliver waste, 
streets and grounds maintenance services on behalf of 
the Council in order to achieve improved performance 
and value for money outcomes 

  

Aim 4: Provision of quality 
parks and open spaces 

 Identify and implement an approach to reduce 
the cost of country parks 

 Develop a plan to improve Brough Park with HLF 
support 

Make improvements to the Tean Road Recreation 
ground in Cheadle  

Aim 4: Promote 
environmentally 
sustainable policies and 
practices 

Reduce the Council’s energy consumption and 
associated costs (through the Asset Management Plan) 

 

 

P
age 93



References 

The benchmarking data used within this Report has been drawn from the following sites: 

1. Grant Thornton’s Place Analytics online tool 

2. Grant Thornton’s CFO Insights online tool 

3. The LGA’s benchmarking tool – LG Inform 

 

 

 

P
age 94



Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live  
and work                      
Increased supply of good quality affordable homes. 
 
The following chart shows the correlation between Housing Benefit costs and processing times against the West Midlands Non- 
Metropolitan group 2016-17using Grant Thornton’s CFO Insight tool. Out of a group of 19, Staffordshire Moorlands costs are 
quite low within the group and have reduced from 8th highest in 2015-16 to 15th in 2016-17. Processing times have increased 
from 17 to 20 days. North Warwickshire processes claims almost as quickly but at a lower cost. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 95



This chart shows the correlation between Change in Circumstances processing times and costs against the group. Staffordshire 
Moorlands’ costs have reduced significantly but processing times have increased slightly from 6 days in 2015-16 to 7 days, 
moving the rank from 3rd to 8th. North Warwickshire processes changes faster and at a lower cost.  
 

 
 
 
 

P
age 96



This bar chart shows changes in the number of households in temporary accommodation in Staffordshire Moorlands since 
2009.  Overall there has been an increase of 140% between 2009-2016 but the figure is still relatively low. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 97



Effective support of community safety arrangements including CCTV 
 
The chart below shows the cost of CCTV compared to the total number of crimes (percentile) for Staffordshire Moorlands 
against the group 2016-17. Costs are mid/high at £187,000 but the total number of crimes are low at 4,671 (10th lowest out of 
a group of 11). Councils spending similar amounts on CCTV would appear to have a higher incidence of crime. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 98



Provision of sports facilities and leisure opportunities focused upon improving health 
 
This map shows which quintile Staffordshire Moorlands falls into for sport and recreational facilities (including golf) (RO) 
£000’s for all English districts in 2016-17. Compared to the West Midlands Group, Staffordshire Moorlands is ranked 9th 
highest spend out of 19. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 99



 
This bar chart shows the proportion of the population in Staffordshire Moorlands who participate in 150+ minutes of exercise 
per week compared to other council areas in Staffordshire (Nov 16- Nov 17 Sport England). Staffordshire Moorlands has 59.5% 
of its residents participating in 150+ minutes of exercise per week, compared to the Staffordshire average of 59%. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

50%

52%

54%

56%

58%

60%

62%

64%

66%

Staffordshire
Moorlands

Tamworth Lichfield Stafford South Staffordshire Cannock Chase Newcastle Under
Lyme

East Staffordshire

P
age 100



 
This spider chart gives an overview of expenditure, income and outcomes relating to sports and leisure facilities. In the context 
of all English districts, Staffordshire Moorlands has an average gross expenditure and high net unit spend on sports and 
recreation facilities. Income from these facilities is very low and the proportion of residents in Staffordshire Moorlands who 
participate in 1 session of sport a week is low in the national context. Sedgemoor has a similar level of gross expenditure to 
Staffordshire Moorlands, as well as a similar level of sports participation. However, Sedgemoor has a much higher total income 
from sports and recreation facilities, and a lower spend per head of population 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 101



 
 
This map shows spend per head of population on sports and recreation facilities for all English districts (RO, £/head 2016-17) 
and shows that Staffordshire Moorlands sit in the third quintile for unit spend on sports and recreational facilities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 102



The following chart shows the correlation between leisure facilities total income and gross expenditure against the context of 
all English districts 2016-17 and shows Staffs Moorlands as having very low income and quite low gross expenditure. The 
authorities in the bottom right quadrant have very high incomes, and low gross expenditure- they would be described as highly 
efficient in this service and include for example Mole Valley, Maidstone and Mid–Sussex. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 103



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Meet Financial Challenges and Provide Value for Money  

Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money  

The map below has been produced using Grant Thornton’s CFoI analytical tool and shows that Staffordshire Moorlands 
has a high rate of Council Tax collection (RO 2016-17) at 98.7% sitting within the top 40% of districts nationally. In 
2015/16, the rate of 98.66% also sat in the top 40%. The cost of Council Tax Collection (RO) £000’s is low compared to the 
group 174th lowest out of 201 areas at £195,000. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 105



This map shows non-domestic collection rates (RO 2016-17) across all English districts. Staffordshire Moorlands has a high 
rate of collection at 98.76%, sitting within the top 40% of districts nationally. In 2015/16, the rate of 98.5% also sat in the 
top 40%. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 106



Ensure our services are easily available to all our residents in the appropriate channels and 
provided ‘right first time’  

The table below has been produced using LG Inform and shows the number of formal complaints from 2016/17 Q1 to 
2016/17 Q4 for Staffordshire Moorlands and Staffordshire Moorlands CIPFA nearest neighbours. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 107



This map shows the total number of Ombudsman complaints received by English Districts in 2016-17. The Staffordshire 
Moorlands score of 10 is low compared to the national context, sitting within the bottom 40% of districts. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 108



A high performing and well motivated workforce  

The chart below compares Staffordshire Moorlands to CIPFA nearest neighbours and is generated using LG Inform tools. It 
shows the average number of days lost to sickness for each individual quarter during 2017-18. The figure for the year was 
9 days against a target of 9 days. 

 

P
age 109



T
his page is intentionally left blank



To help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of 
towns and villages  

Encourage business start-ups and enterprises 

This time series demonstrates changes in business formation rate from 2010-2016. The rate of new businesses as a 
proportion of total business stock has increased from 7.58% in 2010 to in 9.26% in 2016. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 111



 

This bar chart has been produced using Grant Thornton’s CFoI analytical tool and shows the Staffordshire Moorlands new 
business formation rate % for 2016 compared to other authorities in the area. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 112



Encourage and develop tourism 

This map shows the total spend on tourism (RO £000’s 2016-17) across all English districts. Staffordshire Moorlands sits in 
the top quintile of districts nationally, spending £260,000 on tourism. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 113



High quality development and building control with an ‘open for business’ approach 

This scatter plot shows the relationship between the development control spend (RO 000’s) and % major application 
processing within 13 weeks compared with West Midlands Non-Metropolitan districts. In 2016-17, Staffordshire 
Moorlands has processed 96% of applications within target times, no change compared to 2015-16. Warwick and 
Tamworth have better processing times and at lower cost. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 114



This chart shows the correlation between the cost of development control and % minor application processing within 8 
weeks compared with the group for the same period. In 2016-17, Staffordshire Moorlands processed 88% of applications 
within target times, compared to 78% in 2015-16. Districts that have a better processing times and lower spend include 
Warwick and East Staffordshire. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 115



This chart shows the correlation between the cost of development control and % ‘other’ application processing within 8 
weeks compared with group for the same period. In 2016-17, Staffordshire Moorlands has processed 92% of applications 
within target times, compared to 94% in 2015-16. Districts that have better processing times at lower spend include 
Newcastle, Bromsgrove and Warwick.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 116



The map below shows the spend on development control (RO, 2016-17) across all English districts. Staffordshire 
Moorlands spent £369,000 on development control, which places it in the middle quintile.    

 

 

 

P
age 117



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Protect and Improve the Environment  

Effective recycling and waste management 

The charts below have been produced using Grant Thornton’s Cfo Insight tool. This line chart shows the proportion of 
household waste that is sent for reuse, recycling or composting from 2009-2016. Within Staffordshire Moorlands, the recycling 
rate has decreased from 61.84% in 2009-10 to 57.4% in 2016-17. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 119



 
 

This scatter chart demonstrates the relationship between deprivation and the percentage of household waste sent for 
reuse, recycling or composting and shows that there is a weak negative correlation between deprivation and recycling rate 
in the context of all English districts. Staffordshire Moorlands has a mid - deprivation score and a high recycling rate within 
the national context.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

P
age 120



 
 

This bar chart shows the residual household waste per household in kilograms (2016-17) for Staffordshire Moorlands and 
individual districts within Staffordshire. Compared to other districts, Staffordshire Moorlands has a low amount of residual 
waste per household. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 121



 
 

The map shows the unit spend on Waste Collection (RO, £/dwelling 2016-17) across all English districts. Staffordshire 
Moorlands has a very high unit spend, falling into the top 20% nationally. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 122



 
 

This scatter chart shows the correlation between the waste collection RO (£000’s) and the kg of residual waste per 
household. No other district in the West Midlands group has a lower amount of residual waste than Staffordshire 
Moorlands but the costs are second highest in the group.  Warwick residual waste is slightly higher but at a much lower 
cost. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 123



 
 

This scatter chart shows the correlation between the waste collection RO (£000’s) and the % of household waste sent for 
reuse, recycling or composting. Stratford on Avon has a higher recycling rate but their costs are lower. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 124



 
 

Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health 

The table shows the number of fly tipping incidents in 2016-17 compared to the 10 nearest neighbours from the West Midlands 
Group. Compared to the whole West Midlands group, Staffordshire Moorlands were ranked 14th (out of 19) in 2016-17 with 511 
incidents, this compares favourably to 2015-16 when they were ranked 11th with 562 incidents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 125



 
 

This shows the cost (in £ 000’s) of Public Conveniences (RO) compared to the 10 nearest neighbours from the West Midlands 
group in 2016-17. Staffordshire Moorlands have the 2nd highest spend in the group at £276,000, compared to £288,000 in 2015-
16.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 126



 
 

Provision of quality parks and open spaces 

This map shows the cost of open spaces (RO) £000’s 2016-17 across all English districts. Staffordshire Moorlands are now ranked 
83rd out of 201 areas at £962,000. In 2015-16 Staffordshire Moorlands were ranked 107th at £770,000. 

 

 

 

 P
age 127



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Staffordshire Moorlands Performance Framework 2018/19 

P
age 129



 2 

Appendix 1: Performance Targets 2018/19 
 

 
 
Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and work 
Measure Reported  

 
2016-17 
Result 

2017-18 
Result  

2017-18  
Target 

2018-19  
Target  

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target 

Objective: Increased supply of good quality affordable homes 

Housing Benefits Processing: Time taken to 
process a) new claims b) change of 

circumstances 

Monthly a) 20 days 
b) 7 days 

a)19.21 
days           

b) 6.74 
days 

a)18 days  
b) 7 days                                    

a) 18 days  
b) 7 days 

a) 18 days 
b) 7 days 

a) 18 days  
b) 7 days 

 
Number of households in temporary 

accommodation 

Monthly 12 10 15 10  TBD TDB 

Target amended from 15 to 10 in light of Homeless Reduction Act. It will be reviewed going 
forward once the impact of the act becomes evident. 

Homelessness prevention: number and % of 
cases assisted 

Monthly 39.02% 
(32/82) 

51.93% 
(215/414) 

30%  N/A N/A N/A 

NEW: Homelessness : % of cases prevented 
(from total presentations: 
assisted/prevented/other) 

Monthly N/A N/A N/A 65% TBD TBD 

% of active housing register applicants in 
priority need (classes A and B) who have been 

registered in excess of 6 months 

Annual N/A 9.43% N/A Establish 
new  

Baseline 

Establish 
new  

Baseline 

Establish 
new  

Baseline 
 A new baseline will be established once the impact of the Homeless Reduction Act becomes 

evident. 

P
age 130



 3 

Measure Reported  
 

2016-17 
Result 

2017-18 
Result  

2017-18  
Target 

2018-19  
Target  

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target 

% of completed applications for disabled 
adaptations a) approved within 6 months of 

receipt and b) average time taken to approve 
applications 

Quarterly 100% a)100% b) 
30 

100% N/A N/A N/A 

Satisfaction with disabled adaptations 
 

Quarterly 100% 100% 100% N/A N/A N/A 

Housing Benefits Processing: % of cases 
determined correctly 

Annual 99.9% 99.8%  99% 99.5%  99.5%  99.5% 

Objective: Provision of sports facilities and leisure opportunities focused upon improving health  

Level of external funding awarded to support 
the physical activity and sport strategy and 

number of bids 

Quarterly NEW 17-18 £75,000 33% 
success 

rate. 
Minimum 

£50k 

33% success 
rate. 

Minimum 
£50k 

 

33% success 
rate. 

Minimum 
£60k 

 

33% success 
rate. 

Minimum 
£60k 

 

NEW: Number of voluntary 
clubs/organisations supported with funding 

applications 

Annual N/A N/A N/A 4 5 5 

NEW: Number of new sports participation 
programmes created in priority areas             

 

Annual N/A 0 New 4 TBD TBD 

NEW: Number of new volunteering programmes 
created in priority areas                      

 

Annual N/A 0 New 2 TBD TBD 

 
 
 

P
age 131



 4 

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money 
Measure 

  
Reported  2016-17 

Result 
2017-18 
Result  

2017-18  
Target 

2018-19  
Target  

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target 

Objective: Ensure our services are easily available to all our residents in the appropriate channels and provided 'right first time' 

No. / % of interactions: a) phone b) 
face to face c) web 

 

Monthly a) 64,221  
55% 

 b) 37,711  
33%  

c) 13,914 
12% 

a) 38,972 
39%              

b) 23,587  
24%               

c) 37,285   
37% 

a) 45% b) 
25% c) 30% 

a) 40% 
 b) 25 % from 

20% 
c) 35% from 

40% 

a) 35% from 
30%  

b) 20% from 
15% 

 c)45% from  
55% 

a)30%  
b)15%     
c)55% 

 Impacts of Universal Credit in 2018 and Homeless Reduction Bill may be felt on face to face contacts. 

% of contacts dealt with 'right first 
time' 

 

Annual 86% 22% 
reduction to 

16/17 

Establish 
New  

Baseline 

TBD TBD TBD 

NEW: Avoidable contact (number 
taken from customer portal  

 

Annual N/A N/A N/A Establish 
New Baseline 

TBD TBD 

Satisfaction with customer services 
 

Annual 94% Positive Establish 
New  

Baseline 

Establish 
New Baseline 

TBD TBD 

Complaint handling: % dealt with 
within 10 working days 

Monthly 99% 98% 95% 97% 97% 97% 

Complaint handling: % of repeat 
issues (compares previous month 

only) 

Monthly 6% 4% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

P
age 132



 5 

Measure 
  

Reported  2016-17 
Result 

2017-18 
Result  

2017-18  
Target 

2018-19  
Target  

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target 

 FOI requests: % responded to within 
statutory time frame and number of 

requests 
 

Quarterly 97%  99.09% 95% 95% 95% 95% 

Website Quality: Socitm Better 
Connected assessment 

Annual 1 Star 3 stars 4 stars 4 stars 4 stars 4 stars 

Objective: More effective use of Council assets 

Public Buildings Repairs and 
maintenance: response times for 

urgent and non-urgent repairs 

Quarterly a) 100% b) 
96% 

 

No return Urgent 100% 
Non urgent 

95% 

Urgent 100% 
Non urgent 

95% 

Urgent 100% 
Non urgent 

95% 

Urgent 100% 
Non urgent 

95% 
% & number of council owned 

business units occupied 
Annual 87%  

(33/38) 
84%  

(32/38) 
92.1%   

(35/38) 
92.1%  92.1% 92.1% 

IT- % network availability Monthly New 17-18 100% 99% 99% 99% 99% 

IT- % system availability Monthly New 17-18 100% 99% 99% 99% 99% 

Objective: A high performing and well motivated workforce 

Average days sickness absence per 
FTE (show split between short and 

long term) 

Monthly 9.91 days 9 days 9 days  
 

9 days                    9 days                    9 days 

NEW: Average days sickness absence 
per FTE across the Alliance 

Monthly N/A N/A N/A 
 

9 days                    9 days                    9 days 

% of Appraisals completed across the 
workforce (of those due) 

Annual 55% 84%  100%  100% 100% 100% 

Number of a) workplace accidents and 
b) RIDDOR reportable / Lost Time 

(7days) accidents   

Annual a) 37 b) 3 
Joint 

a)28 b)7 a) <36 
b) 0 

a) <28 b)0 TBD TBD 

P
age 133



 6 

Measure 
  

Reported  2016-17 
Result 

2017-18 
Result  

2017-18  
Target 

2018-19  
Target  

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target 

  Target reflects desire for annual improvement in accident figures and aspirational target for reportable 
accidents. Our future rationale for the reduction of accidents will be determined at the end of the next 

financial year.  

Objective: Effective use of financial and other resources to ensure value for money 

Number & % of press releases taken 
up in local media 

Annual 53 issued  
95% take up 

 

46 issued 
96% taken 

up 

90% 90% 90% 90% 

Number of twitter followers Quarterly 1269 1576 1500 1675 from 
1500 

1775 from 
1500 

1875 from 
1500 

  Amended future targets based on outturn performance. 

NEW: Number of Facebook followers  Quarterly N/A 319 N/A 400 500 600 

Collection rates: Business rates Monthly 98.76% 98.54% 98.1% 98.1% from 
98.2% 

 

98.1% from 
98.2% 

98.2% 

 Freeze the current target until 2020/21. Although we over-achieved against the BR targets in 
2017/18, we would prefer to maintain the current targets to allow performance to be monitored in 
2018/19.  This is on the basis that the revaluation was undertaken in 2017, as a result a number of 

new reliefs were introduced/current reliefs extended.  Some of the new reliefs are temporary – 
particularly the Local Discretionary relief scheme (eligible businesses will see their LDRR reduce by 

50% in 2018/19) which may have an impact on collection. 
Collection rates: Council Tax Monthly 98.70% 98.6% 98% 98.1% 98.1% from 

98.2%  
98.2% 

 Targets amended to match the business rates targets. This should be achievable based on previous 
years’ performance. 

Collection rates: Sundry Debt (value of 
SD over 60 days old)  

Quarterly £127,221.40 
 

£110,422.5 5%  
reduction 

5%  
reduction 

5%  
reduction 

3%  
Reduction 
from 5% 

P
age 134



 7 

Measure 
  

Reported  2016-17 
Result 

2017-18 
Result  

2017-18  
Target 

2018-19  
Target  

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21 
Target 

 Will monitor performance, as the level reduces, it becomes more difficult to achieve a year on year 
5% reduction 

% of invoices paid in line with contract Monthly 96% 96% 95%                                            96% 96% 96% 

Use of Contracts register - annual 
contract spend as % of gross 

expenditure budget 

Quarterly 67% 79% 5% 
improvement 

to 16/17 

5% 
improvement 

to 17/18 

3% 
improvement 
to 18/19 was 

5% 

3% 
improvement 
to 19/20 was 

5% 
 Future targets have been reduced as the % improvement increase slows down  as performance improves 

% of procurement activity on the 
Procurement Forward Plan (Joint 

Alliance measure)  

Quarterly 55% 71% 65% 72% from 
65% 

75% from 
70% 

75% 

 Increased target going forward based on outturn performance. 

% of internal audit recommendations 
implemented within timescale 

Quarterly 96.7% 97.53% 96% 97% 97.5%        
(from 98%) 

98% 

 18/19 target amended from 98% to 97.5%. Targets are proving very challenging following 
considerable improvement since 2015/16, our realistic ceiling is very close and any further increases 

will be marginal. 
External Audit Opinion Annual Unqualified 

2015-16 
  Unqualified Unqualified Unqualified Unqualified 

% of corporate efficiency savings met Annual 82%   100% of 
target 

100% of  
target 

100% of  
Target 

100% of 
target 

a) Expenditure variance to budget 
b) Income variance to budget 

 

Annual a) +5% 
b) -5% 
Q3 prov. 
outturn 

  Net Budget 
+/- 5% 

variance 

Net Budget  
+/- 5% 

variance 

Net Budget  
+/- 5% 

variance 

Net Budget 
+/- 5% 

variance 

 

P
age 135



 8 

 

Aim 3: Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns and 
villages 
Measure Reported  2016-17 

Result 
2017-18  
Result  

2017-18  
Target 

2018-19  
Target  

2019-2020 
Target 

2020-2021 
Target 

Objective: Flourishing town centres that support the local economy 

% of empty town centre shops  Annual Leek 
(6.6%), 

Cheadle 
(12.4%), 
Biddulph 
(14.9%). 
District 
average 

9.7% 
 

Leek(7.9%), 
Cheadle(14.3%), 
Biddulph(18.2%). 

Average 11.5% 
 

District 
vacancy 
rate of 
<10%  

 District 
vacancy 
rate of 
<10%  

District 
vacancy 
rate of 
<10% 

District 
vacancy 
rate of 
<10% 

Objective: High quality development and building control with an open for business approach 

Planning processing times a) Majors b) 
Minors c) Others 

Monthly a)90% 
 b) 88% 
 c) 92% 

a)100 %            
b) 90%              
c) 95% 

a)90% 
b)85% 
 c)90% 

a)90% 
b)85% 
c)90% 

a)90% 
b)85% 
c)90% 

a)90% 
b)85% 
c)90% 

% of planning applications with pre-
application enquiries 

Annual 82 
(number) 

12% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

% of appeals successfully defended  Monthly 70% 45% 80% N/A N/A N/A 

NEW :% of major developments allowed on 
Appeal 

Monthly N/A N/A N/A 10% 10% 10% 

P
age 136



 9 

Measure Reported  2016-17 
Result 

2017-18  
Result  

2017-18  
Target 

2018-19  
Target  

2019-2020 
Target 

2020-2021 
Target 

NEW: % of minor and other developments 
allowed on appeal 

Monthly N/A N/A N/A 10% 10% 10% 

Agent satisfaction with Planning Service 
(amended survey) 

Annual 70% 78% 80% 80% 80% 80% 

% of planning enforcement cases resolved in 
13 weeks 

Annual NEW 68% Establish 
Baseline 

70% To be 
reviewed 

after 
18/19 

To be 
reviewed 

after 
18/19 

% of priority 1 planning enforcement cases 
visited within 1 working day 

Annual NEW 100% Establish 
Baseline 

90% 90% 90% 

 

Aim 4: Protect and improve the environment 
Measure Reported  2016-17 

Result 
2017-18  
Result  

2017-18  
Target 

2018-19  
Target  

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21  
Target 

Objective: Effective recycling and waste management 

Recycling rates / Residual waste per 
household 

Quarterly a)55.9% 
 b) 388kg 

58%    
384kg 

55% 
390kg 

59 % from 
56% 

375kg 

59 % from 
57% 

365kg 

60%    
360kg 

  2017-18 result is estimated as Q4 data has not been fully received. Targets have 
been reviewed to take into account the growth in performance that has been 

seen in 2017-18 

P
age 137



 10 

Measure Reported  2016-17 
Result 

2017-18  
Result  

2017-18  
Target 

2018-19  
Target  

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21  
Target 

Missed bins per 100,000 collections (exc. 
customer error and bad weather) 

Monthly 46.49 44.66 35.5 40 from 34 39 from 33 38 

 The target for missed bins requires a review. Evidence suggests that an increase in reports 
took effect following the removal of the CRM system leading to us receiving reports that were 

not justified from customers. Systems presently prevent us from challenging these but they 
have affected performance all year alongside bad weather. Target of 40 should be achievable 

(this is based on 2017-18 reports minus anything for bad weather) 
Objective: Provision of high quality public amenities, clean streets and environmental health 

% of 'high risk' premises (A-C) inspected per 
annum 

Quarterly 100% 100% 100%  100% 100% 100% 

% of routine permitted process premises 
inspected 

Quarterly 100% 100%  100% 100% 100% 100% 

% food premises compliant with FSA criteria   Annual  97% 98% 98% 98%   98%   98% 

Amended: number of fly tips (exc. sec 46 
waste)    

Monthly 464  
 

403  400  395  390  385 

Fixed Penalty Notices – a) littering b) fly-
tipping c) dog fouling 

 

Monthly 40 52 45 N/A N/A N/A 

Number of enviro-crime enforcements 
undertaken ( Abandoned Vehicles, Duty of 

Care) 

Quarterly 480 626 500 N/A N/A N/A 

NEW: Anti-Social Behaviour enforcements by 
type (including behaviour adversely affecting 

the environment)                                                         
a) number of warnings issued   b) number of 

fixed penalty notices issued  c) number of 
Community Protection Notices issued                                                       

 
Monthly 

 
NEW 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
 
 

a)35          
b)50          
c)4             

 
 
 
 

TBD 

 
 
 
 

TBD 

P
age 138



 11 

Measure Reported  2016-17 
Result 

2017-18  
Result  

2017-18  
Target 

2018-19  
Target  

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21  
Target 

d) number of prosecutions d)contextual 

Street and environmental cleanliness 
inspection results (% achieving top grades for 

cleanliness) 

Annual 87.75% 
 

96.4% 88% 88.5% 89% 90% 

 Whilst the target was exceeded in 2017/18 it is currently unclear as to whether or not this is a 
long term trend. Future targets will be reviewed at the end of 18/19.   

Number of community clean-up campaigns Annual 10 60 
 

20 30 35 from 40 40 

 It is increasingly difficult to encourage new groups to participate in community clean ups. 
Officers are actively promoting links to National campaigns but it is unrealistic to try to 

increase the number of clean up by 10 per year. 
Number of pest control contracts  

 
Annual 25 50 46 52 from 48 54 from 50 56 

 Targets have been increased from 2018/19 based on outturn performance. 

Private water supplies - % of sampling 
programme completed 

Annual 100% 100% 100%  100% 100% 100% 

Pollution measures - air quality: % compliance 
against national reporting requirements in 

relation to air quality   

Annual 100% 100%  100%  100% 100% 100% 

Customer satisfaction with regulatory services 
(environment) 

Annual N/a N/a N/a Establish 
baseline 

TBD TBD 

Objective: Provision of quality parks and open spaces 

Green Flag awards maintained Annual 1  Not yet 
available 

 1  1 1 1 

P
age 139



 12 

Measure Reported  2016-17 
Result 

2017-18  
Result  

2017-18  
Target 

2018-19  
Target  

2019-20 
Target 

2020-21  
Target 

Friends / Community Groups – no. of 
volunteer hours 

Annual NEW 1363 250 N/A N/A N/A 
 

Objective: Promote environmentally sustainable policies and practices 

Paper consumption across the alliance Monthly 3470  
reams 

2408 
reams 

3250  
reams 

2500  
reams 

2000  
reams 

2000 
reams 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 140



 13 

Appendix 2: Contextual Performance Indicators 2018/19 
 

 Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work 
 
1. Housing Benefits processing: % of overpayments recovered 
 
2. Landlord Accreditation Scheme - Numbers signed up to scheme 
 
3. CCTV: a) no. of monitored incidents - deleted b) no. of data downloads for the police and number of resolved cases   
 
4. Cost of CCTV per capita and number of cameras- delete number of cameras 
 
5. Effective use of crime and policing powers: number of prosecutions - delete  
 
6. Fear of crime survey results- delete 
 
7. External leverage from grants £ for £ 
 
8. Number of voluntary groups supported 
 
9. Costs of leisure centre provision per households 
 
10. Levels of inactivity among local population and number of volunteers within local sports clubs (Sport England’s Active Lives Survey) 
 
 
 
 

P
age 141



 14 

 Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money 
 
1. Complaint handling: Number received 
 
2. Customer Feedback: Level of compliments 
 
3. The number of empty homes 
 
4. % of income generated against net budget 
 
5. External funding levered annually 
 
6. Number of twitter retweets 
 
7. Staff Climate Survey (2018/19)  
 
8. Staff turnover 
 
9. % of FOI requests diverted to the website / publication scheme 
 
10. The cost of dealing with FOI requests 
 
 
 
 

P
age 142



 15 

 Aim 3: Support economic development and regeneration 
 
1. Planning application processing costs 
 
2. Costs awarded against the council from planning appeals 
 
3. Number of attendees at Planning Surgeries 
 
4. Visitor spend in the area 
 
5. TICs online hits 
 
6. Total tourist bed spaces 
 
7. Total overnight stays (tourism) 
 
8. Number of affordable homes delivered 
 
9. Local Plan Delivery:  New Homes Bonus; Business Rates; Council Tax; employment sites taken up 
 
10. Number of businesses supported by the Growth Hub (fair proportion across partnership) 
 
11. Number of enterprises operating in the area (considering business starts as well as deaths; as recorded through ONS stats) 
 
12. Cost to the Council per Market (Subsidy)  
 
 

P
age 143



 16 

 Aim 4: Protect and improve the environment 
 
 
1. Cost measures: Environmental Health Service 
 
2. Number of premises in each of the 6 food hygiene star rating gradings (from 0 to 5) 
 
3. Cost measures: public conveniences 
 
4. Net income per car parking space 
 
5. Parking PCNs issued and % collected 
 
6. % of car park spaces accredited with Park Mark 
 
7. Cost of street cleansing service 
 
8. Cost of parks and open spaces per capita 
 
9. Cost per household of waste and recycling service 
 
10. No & % of disabled bays within car parks 
 
11.        NEW : Anti- Social behaviour: Number of prosecutions  
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 144



 17 

 
 
 
 

Appendix 3: Deleted Performance Indicators 2018/19 
 

 Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our residents to live and work 
 
Performance Indicator Reason for proposed deletion  
CCTV - number of cameras  A decision is being made regarding CCTV which may result in the number of cameras being fixed 

for a period of years. 
CCTV: Number of monitored incidents Number of monitored incidents is being replaced with resolved cases 

Fear of Crime survey results  We have a problem obtaining the data for one of the Counties and we are reliant on 2 police 
forces carrying out their own analysis and reporting it.  

Effective use of crime and policing powers: 
number of prosecutions 

Replace with Anti-Social Behaviour enforcements (including behaviour adversely affecting the 
environment) a) number of warnings issued b)number of fixed penalty notices issued c) Number 
of Community Protection Notices issued d)Number of prosecutions (Aim 4) 

Homelessness prevention: number and % 
of cases assisted 

Replaced with new measure that better reflects Homeless Reduction Act 

Disabled adaptation application processing and 
satisfaction survey results 

To be replaced with financial updates on the capital allocation and completed spend on disabled 
adaptations within the quarterly financial reports. Processing and satisfaction has been 
consistently 100%.    

 
 

P
age 145



 18 

 Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money 
 
Performance Indicator Reason for proposed deletion  
Public Buildings Repairs and maintenance: 
response times for urgent and non-urgent 
repairs 

DCC unable to provide the data- reintroduce the measure in 2019-20 

% of contacts dealt with 'right first time' 
 

Replace with new measure around avoidable contact as proxy for right first time. Establish new 
baseline 2018/19 based on numbers of avoidable contacts taken from Onevu 

 
 
 

 Aim 3: Support economic development and regeneration 
Performance Indicator Reason for proposed deletion  
% of appeals successfully defended Replaced with 2 new targets: % of major developments allowed on appeal and  % of minor and other 

developments allowed on appeal . The new measures reflect the national government performance 
targets and designation thresholds (in recent AMT report) 

 
 
 
 

P
age 146



 19 

 Aim 4: Protect and improve the environment 
Performance Indicator Reason for proposed deletion  

Number of enviro-crime enforcements 
undertaken (Abandoned Vehicles,  

Duty of Care) 

Replace with Anti-Social Behaviour enforcements (including behaviour adversely affecting the 
environment) a) number of warnings issued b) number of fixed penalty notices issued c) number of 
Community Protection Notices issued d) number of prosecutions 

Number of fly-tips where further 
enforcement action taken   

To be replaced with new ASB Enforcement PIs as detailed above.   

Fixed Penalty Notices – littering, fly-
tipping, dog fouling etc 
 

Replace with Anti-Social Behaviour enforcements (including behaviour adversely affecting the 
environment) a) number of warnings issued b)number of fixed penalty notices issued c) Number of 
Community Protection Notices issued d)Number of prosecutions 

Friends / Community Groups – no. of 
volunteer hours 

To be removed as most of the volunteer hours are within the Countryside Sites which are due to transfer out 
of the authority during 2018/19 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 147



 20 

Appendix 4: Quality and Satisfaction Measures  
 
 
The following satisfaction measures have been historically measured through the original BVPI survey and then locally through the Citizens 
Panel. No results were taken in 2017/18. They will be considered for inclusion within the new Place Survey in December 2018 as part of the 
new consultation strategy, amongst a range of other measures.   
  

• Satisfaction with waste and recycling services 
• Satisfaction with street cleanliness standards  
• Satisfaction with public toilets 

 
 
The following quality measures were included within the new Performance Framework for 2017/18 but have yet to be measured or assessed. 
Work is being undertaken in 2018/19 with regard to the customer services excellence accreditation but the housing quality network 
assessment is being deferred until 2019/20 as the council is currently focusing on a housing advice process review.   
 
 

• Customer Service Excellence accreditation 
• Housing Quality Network assessment 

 
 
 

P
age 148



Council Tax Recovery 

Processes

Presentation to Resources Committee

by Claire Hazeldene (Finance & Procurement Manager) 

6th June 2018

P
age 149

A
genda Item

 9



Introduction

Context

Responsibility for Council Tax

Recovery Processes

Recovery Performance & Activity

P
age 150



ContextP
age 151



Council Tax – Context (2017/18)

Amount Collected – £52.5 million due from  43,700 
properties 

SMDC share – £5m

Collection Rate – 98.6% collected in year due

Write-Offs (2017/18 to date) - £16,000 (0.03%)

P
age 152



Responsibility for 

Council Tax 

P
age 153



Responsibility for Council Tax

Strict hierarchy of who is responsible for paying the Council Tax on a chargeable 
dwelling (property). The person responsible for the Council Tax on a property will be 
the person who comes first on the following list:

• a resident of the property with a freehold interest 

• a resident of the property with a leasehold interest 

• a resident who is a statutory or secure tenant

• a resident who has a contractual licence to occupy

• a resident of the property

• the owner of the property (this applies where the dwelling has no residents or in a 
number of specific circumstances)

A "resident" means any individual who is eighteen years old or over and has their sole 
or main residence in the property. 

An "owner" means a person with a 'material interest' (freehold or leasehold granted 
longer than 6 months) in the whole or any part of a property for which an inferior 
'material interest' is not subject.

P
age 154



Liability of Owners

The owner of a property is usually liable for the Council Tax when the property is 
unoccupied

There are discounts available for empty properties or for other circumstances

Properties left unoccupied and unfurnished (after a period of 2 years) are subject to a 
premium

There are some circumstances where the property owner is liable even when the 
property is occupied:

• Properties occupied by ministers of religion

• Properties occupied by asylum seekers

• Houses in multiple occupation

• Care homes, independent hospitals and hostels

• Properties occupied by religious communities

• Properties occupied by resident domestic staff

An "owner" means a person with a 'material interest' (freehold or leasehold granted 
longer than 6 months) in the whole or any part of a property for which an inferior 
'material interest' is not subject.

P
age 155



Joint and Several Liability

More than one person can be liable for Council Tax if they all fall into the same level 
on the list above and no-one else is higher on the list in relation to the property. This 
is known as "joint and several liability”

Married couples, or people living together as a couple, will normally be jointly and 
severally liable whilst they live in the same property.    

If someone is jointly and severally liable:

• They get one bill with the names of all the liable people on it

• Each of the people named on the bill will be equally responsible for the whole of 
the charge

• The bill cannot be broken down into individual shares

• If the bill is not paid the Council will seek to take recovery action from any liable 
person

P
age 156



Recovery ProcessesP
age 157



Primary Legislation

• Council Tax Administration and Enforcement

Reguations 1992 (as amended)

• Local Government Finance Act 1988

P
age 158



SMDC Debt Recovery Policy

Principles

Firm but fair application of legislation

Consistency

Excellent customer service

Discretion in genuine circumstances only

Increase collection rate

Encourage Direct Debit take-up

Reduce cost of collection

P
age 159



Recovery Process – Council Tax 

• Reminder notice issued 7 days after instalment unpaid

- If paid, installments continue (only 1 more reminder in year)

- If no/partial payment, summons issued after 14 days 

• Reminder issued for second default

- If instalment unpaid for a third time, a final notice will be issued and 

the full years charge payable

• Final Notice Issued

- Full years charge due, will avoid summons if account brought up-to-

date and DD set up

- Otherwise summons issued after 7 days

• Summons (additional costs applied)

- Issued 15 days after reminder/8 days after final notice

- Arrangement can be made, income details requested

P
age 160



Recovery Process (continued)

• Liability Order (additional costs applied)
- At summons stage LO always applied for unless balance paid in full

- Secures the debt, gives the go ahead for Council to take enforcement 
action

• Pre-Compliance Letter
- Issued by Enforcement Agents – but under new Enforcement 

Regulations, no longer a requirement

- Arrangements still acceptable

• Post Liability Order Options 
- Attachment of earnings / benefits

- Enforcement Action (additional costs applied)

- Charging Orders / Bankruptcy

- Committal application

- Write-off

P
age 161



Write Off of Debt

Responsibility to write off debt that is unrecoverable – Financial Statements need 

to be accurate and contemporaneous

Council has write off policy with delegations:

• Under £100 - Finance & Procurement Manager

• Between £100 and £2,000 - Chief Finance Officer  

• Between £2,000 and £5,000 - Portfolio Holder for Finance & Resources 

• Greater than £5,000 - Cabinet 

P
age 162



Recovery Performance & 

Activity

P
age 163



Performance

Council Tax Collection Rates

97.20%

97.40%

97.60%

97.80%

98.00%

98.20%

98.40%

98.60%

98.80%

99.00%

Council Tax

National Average

P
age 164



Recovery Documents

2010/11 2011/12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18

Reminders 8,562 9,671 8,253 10,123 10284 9,422 9,330 8,862

Final Notices 1,960 2,179 1,905 ,2,182 2,336 2,110 2,504 2,158

Summons 3,260 4,557 3,355 4,117 4,355 3,775 2,954 3,231

Liability Orders 2,358 2,898 2,192 2,757 2,871 2,753 2,151 2,413

Enforcement 

Agents 1,062, 1379 1,227 1,554 1,642 1,649 1,459 1,547

P
age 165



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Work Programme 2018/19

Date Item Contact Officer
4th Quarter 2017/18 Procurement, Performance 
& Financial Review

A Stokes

Annual Performance Report A Stokes
Alliance Environmental Services Update A Stokes

06 June 2018

1st Quarter 2018/19 Procurement, Performance 
& Financial Review

A Stokes

Disabled Facilities Grants Update M Towers
Council Tax Recovery Process C Hazeldene

01 August 2018

03 October 
2018

2nd Quarter 2018/19 Procurement, Performance 
& Financial Review

A Stokes28 November 
2018

3rd Quarter 2018/19 Procurement, Performance 
& Financial Review

A Stokes06 February 
2019

03 April 2019

Council Tax Valuation C Hazeldene
Business Rates Re-Valuation C Hazeldene

To be 
confirmed

Page 167

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 169

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 171

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 181

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes

	7 4th Quarter 2017/18 Performance, Procurement & Financial Review
	7a. Financial & Performance Q4 2017-18 App A (06-06-18)
	7b. Financial & Performance Q4 2017-18 App B (06-06-18)
	7c. Financial & Performance Q4 2017-18 App C (06-06-18)

	8 Performance Framework 2018/19 (Incorporating the Annual Report 2017/18 and revised Corporate Plan)
	8. Staffs Moorlands Annual Report 2017-18
	8a. Annual Report Appendix A 2017-18
	8b. Annual Report Appendix B 2017-18
	8c. Annual Report Appendix C 2017-18
	8d. Annual Report Appendix D 2017-18
	8. Performance Targets 2018-2019 Resources Panel

	9 Council Tax Recovery Process - Presentation
	10 Work Programme
	12 Exempt Minutes of the previous meeting
	13 Alliance Environmental Services Update
	13c. AES - Phase 2 - Transfer of Services  - Fleet Management & Waste Collection App C (06-06-18)


